
Truro Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda 
Remote Meeting 

Open Meeting 

Monday, October 23, 2023- 5:30 pm 
www.truro-ma.gov 

Join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone: 

https:/ /us02web.zoom. us/j/88595284687 

Dial in: +l-646-931-3860 or +1-305-224-1968 

Meeting ID: 885 9528 4687 Passcode: 582205 

This will be a remote public meeting. Citizens can view the meeting on Channel 8 in Truro and on the web 
on the "Truro TV Channel 8" button under "Helpful Links" on the homepage of the Town of Truro website 
(www.truro-ma.eov). Click on the green "Watch" button in the upper right comer of the page. Please note 
that there may be a slight delay (approx. 15-30 seconds) between the meeting and the television 
broadcast/live stream. 

Citizens can join the meeting to listen and provide public comment by entering the meeting link; clicking 
on the agenda's highlighted link; clicking on the meeting date in the Event Calendar; or by calling in toll 
free. Citizens will be muted upon entering the meeting until the public comment portion of the hearing. If 
you are joining the meeting while watching the television broadcast/live stream, please lower or mute the 
volume on your computer or television during public comment so that you may be heard clearly. Citizens 
may also provide written comment via postal mail or by emailing Liz Sturdy, Planning Department 
Administrator, at esturdy@truro-ma.gov. 

Public Comment Period 

The Commonwealth's Open Meeting Law limits any discussion by members of the Board of an 
issue raised to whether that issue should be placed on a future agenda. Speakers are limited to no 
more than 5 minutes. 

Minutes 

♦ July 24, 2023
♦ August 21, 2023

Public Hearings - Continued 

Office of Town Clerk 

3: \ C\ p"') 

OCT 18 2023 

1 
�1

eceived �,y._ OF TRURO

2022-017/ZBA (VAR/SP) - Ebb Tide on the Bay Condominiums for property located at 538 
Shore Road (Atlas Map 7, Parcel 7, Registry of Deeds title reference: Book 5671, Page 232). 
Applicant seeks an Amended Variance under M.G.L. Ch. 40A §10 and §40.3.B.2/§30.9.C of the 
Truro Zoning Bylaw for a reduction in number of parking spaces (from 12 spaces to�); Special 
Permit under M.G.L. Ch. 40A §6 and §30.7.A of the Truro Zoning Bylaw for the relocation of 
three non-conforming structures on a lot in the Beach Point Limited Business District. [Original 
material in 9/26/2022, 10/24/2022, 2/2712023, and 5/22/2023 packets) {New material included 
in this packet} 

Truro Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda - October 23, 2023 Page I of2 

esturdy
Highlight

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88595284687


2023-004/ZBA (SPs) - Truro Atlantic View Realty Trust, Bruce A. Jacobson, Trustee for 
property located at 12 Ocean Bluff Lane (Atlas Map 37, Parcel 6). Applicant seeks: (1) Special 
Permit to approve construction on non-conforming lot, including ( completed) construction 
unauthorized by earlier permit, and additional square footage; and (2) Special Permit to exceed 
Gross Floor Area in Seashore District. [ Original material in 5/22/2023, 7/24/2023, and 8/21/2023 

packets] {New material included in this packet} 

2023-006/ZBA Robert J. Martin II and 100 Route 6 LLC for property located at 100 Route 6 
(Atlas Map 55, Parcel 12). Applicant appeals a cease and desist order issued by Building 
Commissioner on May 3, 2023, with respect to property located in the Seashore District. [Original 

material in 7/24/2023 and 8/21/2023 packets and again in this packet) {New material included 
in this packet} 

♦ Letter from Stephen Williams

♦ Letter from Shirley Smith

Public Hearings -New 

2023-009/ZBA - Kimberly Peters for property located at 4 Harrier Way (Atlas Map 50, Parcel 
263). Applicant seeks a Special Permit to exceed Gross Floor Area in the Residential District under 
Zoning Bylaw Sections 50.2 and 30.8 with the construction of an ADU on the property. 

Board Action/Review 

♦ 2023-008/ZBA - Charles Silva for property located at 3 79 Shore Road (Atlas Map 10,
Parcel 10). Applicant seeks a Special Permit to construct a two-story dwelling replacing a
1-½ story dwelling on nonconforming lot (lot area and frontage; front setback, side setback,
and two dwellings on lot) in the Beach Point Limited Business District. [Original material

in 8/21/2023 packet and again in this packet] {New material included in this packet}

o Letter from Charles Silva dated August 28, 2023

o Abutter Letter from Blanche W. Shanley dated September 12, 2023

♦ Appointment of Zoning Board of Appeals Representative to the housing sub-committee

♦ Discussion and Vote on Proposed 2024 ZBA Meeting Schedule

Next Meetings 

♦ Monday, November 20, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.

Adjourn 

Truro Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda - October 23, 2023 

Office of Town Clerk 

3: 19 Pl"'r) 
OCT 18 2023 

Page 2 of2 



1 

STAFF MEMORANDUM 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

To:  Truro Zoning Board of Appeals  

 

From:  Barbara Carboni, Town Planner and Land Use Counsel  

 

Date:  October 18, 2023  

 

Re:  Meeting October 23, 2023 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This memo covers the hearings for 538 Shore Road (Ebb Tide), 12 Ocean Bluff Lane, and 100 

Rt. 6.  I will provide a memo to the Board on 4 Harrier and the agenda item 379 Shore Road 

(Silva) before the weekend. 

 

CONTINUED HEARINGS: 

2022-017/ZBA (VAR/SP) – Ebb Tide on the Bay Condominiums for property located at 538 

Shore Road. Applicant seeks a variance for a reduction in the number of parking spaces from 12 

to 8 (as amended) and a special permit for reconstruction of three nonconforming structures 

(dwellings) in Beach Point Limited Business District. 

Update:  The Planning Board granted Commercial Site Plan Approval on August 23, 

2023 by a vote of 4-3.  A draft decision has been prepared, but not yet reviewed by the 

Planning Board.  The Site Plan approved by the Planning Board is dated December 29, 

2022; that is the operative Plan before this Board.  

The following is adapted from the September 2022 Staff Memo. 

Existing Conditions and Proposed Project  

 

Ebb Tide consists of 6 units in three buildings on a lot containing 14,224 square feet 

(nonconforming where 33,750 square feet required) and 100 feet of frontage (nonconforming, 

where 150 feet required) in the Beach Point Limited Business District.  

 

Building 1 is single story, contains one unit and has a nonconforming setback of 7.16 feet from 

the eastern (side) lot line. Building 2 is single story and contains one unit.  Building 3 is two 

stories, contains four units and has a nonconforming setback of 1.91 feet from the western (side) 

lot line. See Existing Site Plan SE.1. In this portion of the District, the minimum side yard 

setback is 5 feet per story.  See note 4 to Zoning Bylaw Table 50.1. The front setback of 

Building 1 is 22.24 feet; of Building 2 is 37.6 feet; and Building 3 is 40.06 feet. The required 

front setback is 25 feet.   

 

Currently, there is a row of nine parking spaces across the front of a lot, with a second row of 

three spaces behind the front row on the western side of the property.  See Sheet SE-1, Detail of 

Existing Parking. 



2 

Due to erosion under the three buildings, the property owners began developing a plan in 2020 to 

retreat from the shore, reconstructing Buildings 1, 2 and 3 at a uniform distance of 25 feet from 

the front lot line. Among other impacts, this will result in a loss of the second row of three 

spaces. This will reduce the number of spaces per unit to 1.5, short of the 2 units per unit 

required under the Zoning Bylaw; hence the variance request before the ZBA.  

 

Based on the plans provided, including tables (see SP-1 and SP-2), Building 1 will increase from 

1 to 1 ½ stories, and increase in Gross Floor Area from 883 square feet to 1681 square feet.  

Building 2 will increase from 1 to 1 ½ stories, and increase in Gross Floor Area from 578 square 

feet to 1040 square feet. Building 3 will remain a 2-story structure, decreasing in Gross Floor 

Area from 2016 square feet to 1917 square feet.  Total Gross Floor Area will increase from 3,477 

square feet to 4,638 square feet.  (The Gross Floor Area limits applicable in the Residential and 

Seashore District do not apply in this zoning district, Beach Point Limited Business) 

 

The side yard setback of Building 1 will be increased from 7.16 feet to 8 feet.  Because the 

building is increasing to 1 1/2 stories, the side yard setback requirement will increase as well.  

The Bylaw requires "five (5) feet per story" (see n. 4 to Table 50.1), but does not specify the 

required setback per half-story. The applicant suggests that the setback required for a 1 -1/2 story 

building is 7.5 feet (i.e., the additional half story requires an additional 2.5 feet). However, it 

could be argued that any additional portion of a story requires an additional 5 feet, which would 

result in a requirement of 10 feet for this side yard setback.1  The side yard setback of Building 3 

will be increased from 1.91 feet to 3.3 feet, slightly more conforming to the 10 feet required.  

 

The front yard setback of Building 1 will increase from 22.24 feet to a conforming 25 feet. The 

front setbacks of Buildings 2 and 3 will be reduced but to a conforming 25 feet.  

 

The height of Building 1 will increase from 16.76 feet to 29 feet 10.49 inches. The height of 

Building 2 will increase from 13 feet to 29 feet. The height of Building 3 will increase from 

 
1 This interpretation is supported by the remaining language in note 4 to Table 50.1, that a 

structure less than a full story "shall meet the minimum 5 ft setback". The Building 

Commissioner will be consulted prior to the meeting for his interpretation of this Bylaw 

requirement.  If the side yard requirement for the new 1 -1/2 story structure is 7.5 feet, then the 

structure will be conforming at 8 feet.  If the side yard requirement for a 1 -1/2 story is 10 feet, 

however, the new structure will be nonconforming (8 feet where 10 required). Since the existing 

structure has a conforming setback (7.16 feet where 5 feet required), this project will create a 

new nonconformity.  Under G.L. c. 40A, s. 6, a new nonconformity requires a variance rather 

than a special permit, but Bylaw section 30.7.A is more forgiving – the Board may grant relief 

under the special permit standard:   

 

 "Lawful, pre-existing, nonconforming uses and structures may, when a variance would 

 otherwise be required, be altered or extended with a special permit if the Board of 

 Appeals finds that the alteration or extension will not be substantially more detrimental 

 to the neighborhood than the existing nonconforming use or structure and that the 

 alteration or extension will exist in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this 

 bylaw."  [emphasis added] 



3 

24.23 feet to 29.95 feet.  The structures must be elevated to meet requirements for building in the 

Flood Zone; see peak heights in tables on SP-2.  Based on the average grade for each, it appears 

that the structures will not exceed the 30-foot height limit.  

 

The distance between proposed Building 2 and Building 3 appears to be 8 feet. See Addendum 

to Site Plan, AD-1 (indicating 8 foot wide easement running between buildings and to the shore).  

This is narrower than the existing configuration.  See 1986 Plan of Land (in recent submission) 

The distance between Buildings 1 and 2 appears to be approximately 2 or 3 feet at its narrowest, 

where covered porches and stairs on the buildings meet a narrow boardwalk.  This is also 

narrower than the existing configuration.  Both the existing and proposed configurations are 

nonconforming with a Bylaw requirement of 30 feet between "units in cottage colonies or motor 

courts" (see Bylaw s. 50.1.D); the new configuration is more nonconforming.   

 

The project will require Coastal Dune Restoration and a planting plan approved by the 

Conservation Commission.  Septic improvements accommodating 11 bedrooms are intended, to 

be relocated furthest from shore.  See SE-1 and SE-2.  An existing eight foot wide easement 

from Shore Road to the beach is illustrated on the plans; it appears that a boardwalk will be 

removed.  See SE-1 and SE-2. 

 

Standard for Special Permit under G.L. c. 40A, s. 6 and Section 30.7 of the Zoning Bylaw 

 

The lot is nonconforming as to area and frontage; the structures are nonconforming as they are 

within side setbacks. Alteration, extension, or reconstruction of a dwelling on a nonconforming 

lot increases the intensity of the existing nonconformity and requires a special permit under G.L. 

c. 40A, s. 6. Bjorklund v. Zoning Board of Appeals of Norwell, 450 Mass. 357 (2008). 

 

The Board may grant a special permit under G.L. c. 40A, s. 6 if it finds that the proposed 

alternation and reconstruction “shall not be substantially more detrimental than the existing 

nonconforming [structure and] use to the neighborhood.”  

Likewise, the Board may grant a special permit under Section 30.7.A if it finds that: “the 

alteration or extension will not be substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood than the 

existing nonconforming use or structure and that the alternation or extension will exist in 

harmony with the general purpose and intent of this bylaw.”  

In this case, the structures as proposed – all three elevated and two closer to Shore Road – will 

have a different impact on the streetscape and neighboring properties than the existing 

configuration. This and other considerations are entrusted to the Board’s judgment, based on its 

“intimate understanding of the immediate circumstances [and] of local conditions . . . .” 

Fitzsimonds v. Board of Appeals of Chatham, 21 Mass.App.Ct. 53, 55 (1985).  

 

Standard for Variance from Parking Requirement  

 

The parking schedule of s. 30.9.C requires 2 spaces per dwelling unit for multi-family use.  The 

existing development complies with that requirement at 12 spaces for 6 units; the proposed 

modifications to the site (as amended) will result in the loss of 4 spaces, leaving only 8 spaces 

for 6 units, or 1.3 spaces per dwelling unit.  



4 

 

The requirement for a variance from parking requirements is the same as for variances from 

dimensional requirements. Under G.L. Chapter 40A, Section 10, a variance may be granted 

where a Board “specifically finds that:  

 [1] owing to circumstances relating to the soil conditions, shape, or topography of such 

 land or structures and especially affecting such land or structures but not affecting 

 generally the zoning district in which it is located,  

 [2] a literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance or by-law would involve 

 substantial hardship, financial or otherwise, to the petitioner or appellant, and  

 [3] that desirable relief may be granted without substantial detriment to the public good 

 and without nullifying or substantially derogating from the intent or purpose of such 

 ordinance or by-law.”  

The Board must find all three of the above to grant a variance. 

The project narrative provides a sufficient basis upon which the Board could make the required 

findings and grant a variance, but of course this is a matter of judgment for the Board.  

 

 

2023-004/ZBA (SPs) – Truro Atlantic View Realty Trust, Bruce A. Jacobson, Trustee for 

property located at 12 Ocean Bluff Lane.  Applicant seeks special permits to 1) approve 

construction on nonconforming lot, included completed construction unauthorized by earlier 

permit, and additional square footage; and 2) exceed Gross Floor Area in the Seashore District.  

Update:  The applicant has submitted two plan sheets stamped by an architect with a 

table indicating Seashore District Gross Floor Area, with a third sheet enlarging the 

table.   

Previously, the applicant had submitted certain other additional materials, including a 

timeline prepared by counsel; an engineer’s certification as to the setback from the front 

lot line; building permit application materials relating to earlier construction; and 

stamped site plans.   

Counsel advises that the applicants have redesigned the project “to remove the deck on 

the south side to reduce the encroachment.” Counsel advises that this Plan will be sent to 

the Board later today (Wednesday, October 18th), with the hope that it might be 

considered by the Board.  

Status of Ocean Bluff Lane: According to counsel, the prior owners of property will 

convey Ocean Bluff Lane to the current owners/applicants. Counsel may address this at 

the hearing. 

The following is adapted from previous memo.  

Existing conditions and prior proceedings 



5 

 The lot is nonconforming as to area (approx. 2.69 acres where 3 acres required) and as to 

frontage.  Related ZBA (November 2017) and Planning Board (May 2018) approvals issued 

allowing the removal of an existing cottage; construction of a new dwelling; and construction of 

a garage/habitable studio structure on the property.  The cottage was nonconforming as to 

setback from the front lot line.   

The new dwelling and habitable studio were constructed in 2018.  As a baseline, the 

square footage approved for these structures must be determined.  A “Site Plan of Land in Truro 

as prepared for Kenneth S. Kuchin Depicting Proposed Conditions” dated October 2017 

(evidently approved in the 2018 Planning Board Decision; included in the applicant’s original 

packet) provides a “Proposed Gross Floor Area” of 1,181 square feet for the new dwelling and 

660 square feet for the studio (total approved Gross Floor Area of 1,841 square feet for the 

property). This is almost consistent with the “Prior Approval” square footage in the applicant’s 

submitted Zoning Table (1,842 square feet).   

Next, it must be determined what was in fact constructed. A previously-submitted Site 

Plan (J.M. O’Reilly, June 28, 2023) contains a zoning table, but it is not clear how these 

dimensions were determined.  The most recently-submitted floor plans identify certain 

dimensions “Existing as of Purchase,” but without as-built plans, it is not possible to confirm 

what was in fact constructed.2 

 The applicant’s originally-submitted Zoning Table indicates an Existing Gross Floor 

Area of the principal dwelling of 2,141 square feet: 1,483 square feet constructed on the 1st floor 

(302 square feet more than approved) and 658 square feet of habitable space constructed in the 

basement (none originally approved). The Zoning Table further provides an existing Gross Floor 

Area of 674 square feet for the studio (660 approved), for a total existing Gross Floor Area on 

the property of 2,815 square feet. These dimensions are not confirmed. 

Proposed Project 

The current applicants purchased the property following the above approvals and 

construction.  They seek to add 458 square feet of additional habitable area in the basement (see 

Zoning Table; 1,116-658) and 299 square feet of additional area on the 1st floor (1,782-1,483). 

Together, this is 757 additional square feet for the house. The total Gross Floor Area proposed 

for the property is 3,572 square feet (house 2,898 plus studio 674). Subject to confirmation of as-

built dimensions.  

Special Permits are needed 1) for alteration/expansion of the dwelling on a 

nonconforming lot; and 2) to exceed Gross Floor Area in the Seashore District. 

 
2The applicant had previously submitted a plan set from 2022, which indicates square footage of 

rooms individually, but these plans were for permitting and cannot be relied upon for as-built 

dimensions. 



6 

Special Permit under G.L. c. 40A, s. 6 and Section 30.7 of the Zoning Bylaw 

(Alteration/Expansion on Nonconforming Lot) 

The lot is nonconforming as to lot area, frontage, and front setback.  Alteration, 

extension, or reconstruction of a dwelling on a nonconforming lot increases the intensity of the 

existing nonconformity and requires a special permit under G.L. c. 40A, s. 6. Bjorklund v. 

Zoning Board of Appeals of Norwell, 450 Mass. 357 (2008).  

 

The Board may grant a special permit under G.L. c. 40A, s. 6 if it finds that the proposed 

alternation and reconstruction “shall not be substantially more detrimental than the existing 

nonconforming [structure and] use to the neighborhood.”  

Likewise, the Board may grant a special permit under Section 30.7.A if it finds that: “the 

alteration or extension will not be substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood than the 

existing nonconforming use or structure and that the alternation or extension will exist in 

harmony with the general purpose and intent of this bylaw.”  

In this case, in considering whether the resulting expanded structure is “substantially 

more detrimental. . .”, the Board should consider all expansion beyond the original 2017 and 

2018 approvals, not simply the additional square footage now requested.  Although the current 

owners are not responsible for the unlawful construction prior to their purchase, they have 

inherited the additional square footage.  The impact of the total expansion beyond the original 

permits must be considered.    

Special Permit to Exceed Seashore District Gross Floor Area 

The Zoning Bylaw limits Total Gross Floor Area in the Seashore District to 3,600 square 

feet for a lot containing three acres, “minus 200 square feet for each continuous acre less than 3 

acres, as the case may be, where the square footage per acre specified above is prorated for a 

portion of an acre.”  Section 30.3.1.A.  Where the parcel is 2.69 acres, the prorated as-of-right 

square footage is approximately 3534 square feet.3    

 

Section 30.1.A.2 does not provide a standard or criteria for the Board to apply in 

considering a request to exceed Gross Floor Area,4 but Section 30.8 of the Bylaw does provide a 

standard applicable to all special permits:  

 

“Special permits may be approved only after a finding by the Board of Appeals or 

Planning Board (as applicable, see use table) that the proposed use is in the opinion of the 

Board in harmony with the general public good and intent of this bylaw. The approval 

shall be subject to any other applicable provision of this bylaw and the Board may 

 
3 At 2.69 acres, the lot is approximately 1/3 of an acre "short" of the required 3.0 acres.  1/3 of 

200 square feet is 66 square feet. Subtracting this shortage of 66 square feet from the 3600 

square foot baseline, an approximate prorated 3,534 square feet as-of-right is reached. 

  
4 In contrast, Section 50.2, Building Gross Floor Area for the Residential District, does contain 

criteria.  See Section 50.2.D.  



7 

impose conditions, safeguards, and limitations on time and use, which in the Board’s 

opinion are necessary to comply with the intent and purpose of this bylaw.” 3 

 

Zoning Bylaw Section 30.8. It is recommended that the Board apply the above standard to the 

applicant’s request to exceed the maximum permitted Gross Floor Area. 

 

 

2023-006/ZBA – Robert J Martin II and 100 Route 6 LLC for property located at 100 

Route 6 (Atlas Map 55, Parcel 12). Applicant appeals cease and desist order issued by Building 

Commissioner on May 3, 2023 with respect to property located in the Seashore District. 

Facts and Procedural History 

 This property is located in the Seashore District. Containing 1.7 acres, it was the site of 

Jack’s Gas Station, in operation prior to the creation of the Cape Cod National Seashore in 1961. 

It is currently owned by 100 Route 6 LLC (an entity evidently related to the Aiken Family Realty 

Trust) and leased to the applicant Robert Martin. Commercial uses (other than commercial 

fishing activity and food trucks) are prohibited in the Seashore District. See Bylaw s. 30.2, Use 

Table. In addition, the "continuous storage of materials or equipment" is prohibited.  See s. 

30.3(C)(7).  

 In 1998, a gas leak from an underground storage tank was discovered on the site.  

According to documents in the Building Department file, all underground gasoline tanks were 

removed; remediation was commenced; and gas station operations ceased as of March 1998. See 

Immediate Response Action Plan dated May 1998 ("The site activities no longer include the 

public dispensing of fuel but are restricted to the selling of firewood.") . At that time, Owner 

Richard Aiken sold firewood (and, according to contemporaneous newspaper articles, other 

items including frozen candy bars) on the site.5   

 Documents in the Building Department file (including correspondence from the Park 

Service and counsel to Mr. Aiken) indicate that proceeds from the sale of firewood on the 

property were paid into an escrow account for site remediation purposes.  Mr. Aiken began 

 
5 There is no direct evidence of when the sale of firewood commenced in the property (in 

particular, whether the sale of firewood existed at the time the gas station ceased operations in 

March 1998).  However, minutes of the ZBA's November 1, 2004 meeting state that Mr. Aiken 

identified 1981 as when firewood sales began. Minutes of the ZBA's September 27, 2004 

meeting state that the site "had been a gas station and firewood business for seventeen years."  

Direct evidence is also lacking as to whether the sale of firewood ceased at any point, and for 

how long.  A letter from Mr. Aiken's counsel to the Park Service dated September 15, 2008 states 

that firewood sales were "suspended" due to economic conditions, but the term of this 

suspension is not evident. 



8 

leasing out the property in 2005; both the sale of firewood and payment of proceeds into the 

escrow account continued.  

 The station building itself succumbed to fire on November 14, 2003.  On November 4, 

2004, Mr. Aiken was granted a special permit by the ZBA "to rebuild a pre-existing, 

nonconforming structure on its original location. . . . [and] a Condition to said Grant is the 

Special Permit shall extend for thirty (30) years from the date of approval."6 According to ZBA 

meeting minutes of September 27, 2004, Mr. Aiken's stated intent was not to re-establish a gas 

station; he stated that "he did not intend to expand beyond the sale of firewood."  A building 

permit issued on February 1, 2006, but the building was never constructed.   

 Sale of firewood on the site evidently continued, although, as discussed in footnote 4, it is 

not evident from the Building Department file whether such use was subject to interruption, and 

if so, for what period(s) of time.7    

  In early 2023, Mr. Martin began renting the property. He cleared portions of the site; 

installed additional storage structures for the firewood and signs for the business; and placed 

additional materials such as loam and gravel on the site in separate storage areas contained by 

concrete block walls. Such activities require prior Commercial Site Plan Approval by the 

Planning Board, which had not been obtained.  On March 15, 2023, at the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, Mr. Martin filed an application with the Planning Board for 

Commercial Site Plan Review. Hearing opened on April 12, 2023.  The application stated "No 

change of use, selling firewood and other materials like the previous tenant." 8 The application 

did not include certain required materials, including a site plan reflecting existing conditions. 

Hearing was continued.  

 On May 5, 2023, the Building Commissioner issued a cease and desist order to Mr. 

Martin, stating: 

 "This operation is in violation of the Town of Truro Zoning Bylaws paragraph 30.3 

 Seashore District item 12 which states, 'Lawfully pre-existing non-conforming 

 commercial uses and structures may continue, but in no case shall the use be altered or 

 
6 The position of the Park Service at the time, as indicated in correspondence to the ZBA, was 

that the preexisting nonconforming use for a commercial gas station had been abandoned, and no 

new commercial use could lawfully be established in the Seashore District.  

 
7 The Building Department file contains a sign permit issued in August 2021 (evidently to a prior 

tenant) for installation of a sign for "Cape Cod Firewood."  

8 A letter in support of the application from Andrew Aiken to the Planning Board stated: 

 "The principal use of the property has been to process and sell firewood and related 

 landscape materials, in accordance with the lease, as it has been with previous tenants and 

 as my late father Richard Aiken used the property over the past forty years." 

 



9 

 converted to another commercial use.' The current use is an alteration and intensification 

 of the prior use and therefore NOT ALLOWED." 

 This CEASE and DESIST order is effective immediately. . . ." 

Mr. Martin timely appealed the cease and desist order.  Hearing before the Planning Board on 

Site Plan Review has been continued pending resolution of ZBA proceedings.  

Review of Building Commissioner's Cease and Desist Order 

 Review of the Building Commissioner's Cease and Desist Order is provided for under 

G.L. c. 40A, s. 8 and s. 15, and Zoning Bylaw Section 60.2. The vote of four Board members is 

required to overturn the Building Commissioner's order.  G.L. c. 40A, s. 15, para.4.  

 As noted by the Building Commissioner in his Cease and Desist Order, s. 30.3 of the 

Seashore District Bylaw provides that:  

 "Lawfully pre-existing non-conforming commercial uses and structures may continue, 

 but in no case shall the use be altered or converted to another commercial use." 

Zoning Bylaw s. 30.3(B)(12). A zoning bylaw or ordinance may permissibly provide for such 

strict regulation of nonconforming uses.  See Blasco v. Board of Appeals of Winchendon, 31 

Mass.App.Ct. 32, 39 (1991)(recognizing "the continuing right of a municipality through its 

zoning by-law to regulate or forbid changes in nonconforming uses")(emphasis added); Almeida 

v. Arruda, 89 Mass.App.Ct. 241 at n.5 (same).   

 The Building Commissioner found that Mr. Martin's current use of the property "is an 

alteration and intensification of the prior use and therefore not allowed." In determining whether 

to uphold the Building Commissioner's Order, the Board must first identify a "lawfully pre-

existing nonconforming commercial use" of the property, against which the current use will be 

measured to determine whether there has been an "alteration" of that pre-existing use or a 

"conversion to another commercial use."  See s. 30.3(B)(12).  

Based on the 2004 special permit and related ZBA meeting minutes, it appears that the 

sale of firewood on the property has been considered by the Town to be a lawfully pre-existing 

nonconforming use. There are several arguments against this finding (discussed below, with an 

alternate analysis), but for the current discussion, the Board may consider the sale of firewood to 

be a "lawfully pre-existing non-conforming use" that may, under s. 30.3(B)(12), "continue" on 

the site.   

 The next question is whether the current use of the site is an "alteration" or "conversion" 

of the pre-existing sale of firewood. Evidence would support such a finding.  Where materials in 

addition to firewood (e.g., loam; gravel; sand; shells) are now sold on the site, the preexisting use 

has been expanded in scope, which is an “alteration” of the use.  In addition, the scale of the 

operation has increased to serve contractors, which is another “alteration” of the use.9 If the 

 
9 As discussed above, Mr. Martin has also made significant alterations to the site, clearing a 

substantial area; installing additional storage structures for the firewood and signs for the 



10 

Board makes such findings, then it agrees with the Building Commissioner that the current use 

violates s. 30.3(B)(12) and should uphold the Building Commissioner's Cease and Desist Order. 

Such decision would require the permanent cessation of all activities other than the sale of 

firewood.   

If, in the alternative, the Board finds that the current use of the property is not an 

alteration of the preexisting use of firewood sales, then the Board would reverse the Building 

Commissioner’s Cease and Desist Order.  Such decision would allow the current use, at the 

current scope and scale, to continue.    

Is the sale of firewood a lawful preexisting nonconforming use?   

 The above discussion assumes that the sale of firewood is a lawful preexisting 

nonconforming use.  The Town has seemingly treated it that way, as evidenced by the 2004 ZBA 

hearing and special permit issued, and as also evidenced by the Town allowing the use to 

continue unimpeded over the years.  

 However, it may be noted that the nonconforming use that predated establishment of the 

Seashore in 1961 was use of the property as a gas station, not use for the sale of firewood.  

There is no evidence that firewood sales were conducted on the property in 1961, when the gas 

station use became lawfully nonconforming.  The only evidence in the record regarding the 

commencement of firewood sales was that they started in 1981; this date was provided by Mr. 

Aiken in 2004 at ZBA proceedings. 

 The sale of firewood could possibly be viewed as a use accessory to the gas station use.  

An accessory use is defined in the Zoning Bylaw as: 

“A use customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use or building and located 

on the same lot with such principal use or building.” 

It would be fair to say that the sale of firewood is “customarily incidental” at gas stations on the 

Cape and elsewhere.  It would also be fair to say that when firewood was sold at the gas station 

in this case, such sales were “subordinate” to the gas station use.  Therefore, the sale of firewood 

may be considered to have been a use accessory to the principal gas station use of the property.  

 However, the nonconforming use of the property as a gas station ceased in 1998 

following the tank leak and removal.  Under Section 30.7 of the Zoning Bylaw, preexisting 

nonconforming uses lose their lawful status if abandoned for a period of two years or more: 

 

business; and placing additional materials such as loam and gravel on the site in separate storage 

areas contained by concrete block walls.  However, these alterations of the site go to Site Plan 

Review, rather than use, and to the extent such alterations were made without prior approval, that 

is a zoning violation separate from the violation of s. 30.3(B)(12) by alteration of the pre-existing 

use.    

 



11 

“Abandonment.  Nonconforming uses which have been abandoned for a period of 2 years 

or more shall not be re-established, and any future use shall conform to the then-current 

bylaw.” 

Zoning Bylaw s. 30.7(C).10  As of March or perhaps May of 2000, the gas station use had been 

abandoned or discontinued for a period of two years.  As a result, at that time, gas station use of 

the property lost its status as a lawful preexisting nonconforming use. Such use could not (and 

cannot) be reestablished. See s. 30.7(C) above.  

 What had been an accessory use on the property – the sale of firewood – continued on the 

property following the cessation of the principal gas station use.  However, an accessory use 

cannot exist on a property except in relation to a principal use.  “An incidental or accessory use 

under a zoning law is a use which is dependent on or pertains to the principal or main use.”  

Town of Needham v. Winslow Nurseries, Inc., 330 Mass. 95, 101(1953)(emphasis added). Put 

more simply, without a principal use, there can be no accessory use.  

Under this rule, after the principal gas station use was extinguished in 2000 (two years 

after operation of the gas station ceased), there was no principal use on the property on which 

firewood sales were “dependent.” See italicized language in paragraph above. The firewood sales 

– formerly dependent upon the gas station use - were in effect orphaned when the nonconforming 

gas station use was extinguished in 2000 (if not in 1998, when operations ceased).  At that time, 

firewood sales ceased to be a lawful accessory use, and became simply an unlawful use.11 

If the Board agrees with the above analysis, then the sale of firewood is not a permitted 

use on the property: 1) prohibited under the Bylaw, which prohibits commercial uses, and 2) not 

protected by connection to any lawful preexisting nonconforming use. Cessation of firewood 

sales would be required (in addition to cessation of sales of other materials).  

Prohibition on Continuous Storage of Materials and Equipment 

Under Section 30.7(C), once a nonconforming use is lost, any future use of property must 

conform to the then-current Bylaw.  Where the nonconforming gas station use of the property 

was extinguished in 2000 – and with it, any uses accessory to that principal use – the property 

 
10 This provision is consistent with G.L. c. 40A, s. 6, which provides in part:  

“A zoning ordinance or by-law may define and regulate nonconforming uses and 

structures abandoned or not used for a period of two years or more.” 

 
11 The fact that the Town has not enforced the Bylaw with respect to the sale of firewood on the 

property would not prevent it from taking enforcement action now, should the Board conclude 

such use is unlawful. See Building Commissioner of Franklin v. Dispatch Communications of 

New England, Inc., 48 Mass.App.Ct. 709, 715 (2000) (“The building commissioner's original 

conclusion that the tower did fall under the definition of public utility does not preclude the 

board's later enforcement of a contrary position.”) 

  

 



12 

must comply with current Bylaw requirements.  Among prohibited uses in the Seashore District 

is the "continuous storage of materials or equipment." See Section 30.3(C)(7).   

Use of the property for sale of firewood and other materials at the current scale entails 

continuous storage of a sizeable quantity of materials, as well as equipment used to load and 

unload materials.  In determining whether   The Board may consider this section of the Bylaw in 

determining whether to uphold the Building Commissioner’s cease and desist order.  

 



1 

 

STAFF MEMORANDUM 

SUPPLEMENTAL 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

To:  Truro Zoning Board of Appeals  

 

From:  Barbara Carboni, Town Planner and Land Use Counsel  

 

Date:  October 19, 2023  

 

Re:  Meeting October 23, 2023 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2023-009/ZBA – Kimberly Peters for property located at 4 Harrier Way (Atlas Map 50 

Parcel 263). Applicant seeks a special permit to exceed Gross Floor Area in the Residential 

District.   

Existing Conditions and Proposed Project 

The lot is conforming as to area (75,972 square feet where 33,750 required) and frontage 

(166.66 feet where 150 required).  An existing dwelling is conforming as to all setbacks and 

contains 3,833 square feet of Gross Floor Area.  The applicant seeks to construct an ADU of 900 

square feet to the south of the existing dwelling, conforming to setbacks.  This would result in a 

total of 4,733 square feet.   

Per the Building Commissioner, the maximum as of right Gross Floor Area for the parcel 

is 3,968 square feet,1 plus an ADU of 900 square feet, for a total of 4868 square feet.  Seemingly, 

the proposed project, containing a 4,733 square feet of Gross Floor Area, falls within this 

maximum and does not require relief.  However, what is permissible under Bylaw section 50.2.B 

is not entirely clear, due to certain changes in the ADU Bylaw last year; perhaps this is why the 

applicant filed for zoning relief.2 

 
1 3,668 sq ft for the first acre, plus 300 square feet for the additional portion of an acre, see 

sections 50.2.B.1 and 50.2.B.1.a. 
 
2 Pursuant to Section 50.2.B.2.c., a “Planning Board Approved Accessory Dwelling Unit of up to 

1,000 sq. ft.” is allowed in addition to the square footage calculated according to acreage.  

However, amendments to the ADU Bylaw (Section 40.2) last year removed the requirement of 

Planning Board approval and reduced the maximum square footage to 900 square feet.  Section 

50.2.B.2.c. is therefore no longer consistent with the ADU Bylaw.   

 



2 

Should the Board find that a special permit is required for the proposed ADU of 900 square feet, 

the following standard applies: 

A Special Permit may be granted only where the Zoning Board of Appeals finds by clear 

and convincing evidence that the proposed alteration, construction or reconstruction is 

consistent with the criteria found in Section 30.8 (Special Permits) of these Bylaws. In 

addition, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall make specific written findings of objective 

facts that support the request for additional gross floor area, and demonstrate that the 

additional gross floor area is in the public interest of the Town of Truro, and not 

inconsistent with the intention and purpose of this Bylaw, which is to promote the health, 

safety, convenience and welfare of the inhabitants of Truro, prevent the overcrowding of 

land, conserve the value of land and buildings, enable the protection of clean and 

adequate water supply, conserve natural resources, prevent blight of the environment, 

encourage the most appropriate use of land in Truro. In considering whether the proposed 

alteration, construction or reconstruction is in harmony with the public good and is not 

detrimental to the neighborhood the Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider, among other 

relevant factors, the size of neighboring buildings and the surroundings in which the 

additional gross floor area is proposed. 

Section 50.2.D. 

BOARD ACTION/REVIEW  

2023-009/ZBA – Charles Silva for property located at 379 Shore Road (Atlas Map 10, Parcel 

10).  Applicant seeks reconsideration of the Board’s vote to deny a special permit to construct a 

two-story dwelling replacing a 1 -1/2 story dwelling on a nonconforming lot in the Beach Point 

Limited Business District.  

As the Board may remember, on August 21, 2023, public hearing on this application 

opened, and following testimony, the Board voted to deny the special permit.  On August 28, 

2023, the applicant filed a request that the Board reopen the hearing regarding his application.  

Among other points raised in this request, the applicant noted that he was not given an 

opportunity to withdraw his application or ask for a continuance.  See Chuck Silva letter dated 

August 28, 2023, in packet.  No decision reflecting the Board’s vote has been filed with the 

Town Clerk, nor has any other action has been taken on the denial.   

Basis for Board Action 

There is no express provision in G.L. c. 40A nor in the Town’s Zoning Bylaw for re-

opening a public hearing.  However, I found several Massachusetts cases in which a board did 

reopen a hearing, after a vote was taken, but before a decision issued - which is the case here.3   

 
3 The ability to reopen a public hearing was not the legal question considered by the Board in any 

of these cases; it was just noted in passing that a board of appeals had done so.  The fact that the 



3 

Course of Action 

Reconsideration of Mr. Silva’s application would involve two steps. The first step would 

be for the Board to vote to reopen the hearing. If the Board votes to reopen the hearing, then the 

application would be scheduled for hearing at a future ZBA meeting (with notice, etc.).   

The Board is at Step 1 tonight, with the applicant having an opportunity to explain why 

the hearing should be reopened.  The Board will then vote on whether to reopen the hearing.  A 

simple majority vote would be needed. 

 

 

court did not take issue with the board reopening a hearing suggests that this is a defensible and 

reasonable action for the Board to take in this case.   

 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on July 24, 2023  Page 1 of 5 

TOWN OF TRURO 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
Meeting Minutes 

July 24, 2023 – 5:30 pm 
REMOTE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING 

 
 
 
Members Present (Quorum): Art Hultin (Chair); Chris Lucy (Vice Chair); Darrell Shedd; Heidi Townsend; 
Nancy Medoff; Dave Crocker (Alt.); Joseph McKinnon (Alt.) 
 
Members Absent:  
 
Other Participants: Barbara Carboni – Town Planner/Land Use Counsel; Robert Weinstein-Select Board 
Liaison; William Henchy-Attorney for Robert J. Martin II (Applicant); Ben Zehnder-Attorney for Bruce 
Jacobson-Trustee (Applicant); Bruce Jacobson (Applicant) 
 
Remote meeting convened at 5:30 pm, Monday, July 24, 2023, by Town Planner/Land Use Counsel 
Carboni who announced that this was a remote meeting which is being broadcast live on Truro TV 
Channel 18 and is being recorded. Chair Hultin introduced the Members of the ZBA. 
 
Public Comment Period 
 
Chair Hultin invited the Members and the public to offer public comments, and there were none. 
 
Minutes 
 
Chair Hultin led the review of the minutes from the June 26, 2023, meeting for corrections or edits and 
there were none. 
 
Member Shedd made a motion to approve the minutes of June 26, 2023, as written. 
Member Medoff seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Member Shedd – Aye 
Vice Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Chair Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 
Public Hearings (Continued) 
 
2022-017/ZBA (VAR/SP) - Ebb Tide on the Bay Condominiums for property located at 538 Shore Road 
(Atlas Map 7, Parcel 7, Registry of Deeds title reference: Book 5671, Page 232). Applicant seeks a 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on July 24, 2023  Page 2 of 5 

Variance under M.G.L. Ch. 40A § 10 and §40.3.B.2/§30.9.C of the Truro Zoning Bylaw for a reduction in 
number of parking spaces (from 12 spaces to 9); Special Permit under M.G.L. Ch. 40A §6 and §30.7.A of 
the Truro Zoning Bylaw for the relocation of three nonconforming structures on a lot in the Beach Point 
Limited Business District. 
 
Chair Hultin announced that the Applicant had requested a continuance until August 21, 2023. 
 
Chair Hultin made a motion to continue the matter of 2022-017/ZBA until August 21, 2023. 
Vice Chair Lucy seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Member Shedd – Aye 
Vice Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Chair Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 
2023-004/ZBA (SPs) - Truro Atlantic View Realty Trust, Bruce A. Jacobson, Trustee for property located 
at 12 Ocean Bluff Lane (Atlas Map 37, Parcel 6). Applicant seeks: (1) Special Permit to approve 
construction on non-conforming lot, including (completed) construction unauthorized by earlier permit, 
and additional square footage; and (2) Special Permit to exceed Gross Floor Area in Seashore District. 
 
Chair Hultin recognized Attorney Zehnder who provided background on this matter (to include 
unpermitted changes made to the home by the previous owner) and the purpose for this application. 
 
Members and Attorney Zehnder discussed the following highlighted topics: an easement right by the 
Applicant, the Site Plan, the extension of an existing nonconforming structure, the need to review the 
original decisions and respective meeting minutes (in 2017 and 2018) by the Planning Board and ZBA for 
the previous owner before the Members could opine or vote on whether the proposed project is more 
detrimental to the neighborhood, and the specific incorrect setback information included in the packet. 
 
After the discussion, Attorney Zehnder presented a 3D drawing of the proposed plan that displayed the 
various views of the proposed project as well as the site plan which were included in tonight’s packet.  
 
Chair Hultin asked if there were members of the public who wished to speak for or against this matter 
and there were none. 
 
Chair Hultin stated that he thought it would be best to continue this matter to review new information 
to be provided by the Applicant and Members were in general agreement. Town Planner/Land Use 
Counsel Carboni agreed to assist Attorney Zehnder with reviewing the Members’ request for additional 
information to ensure that the Applicant complied with the ZBA’s expectations for information. 
 
Prior to voting on a motion on this matter, Chair Hultin announced that Member Crocker would abstain 
from voting.  
 
Chair Hultin made a motion to continue the matter of 2023-004/ZBA to August 21, 2023, at 5:30 pm. 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on July 24, 2023  Page 3 of 5 

Vice Chair Lucy seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Member Shedd – Aye 
Vice Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Abstained 
Member McKinnon - Aye 
Chair Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 6-0-1, motion carries.  
 
Public Hearing (New) 
 
2023-006/ZBA Robert J. Martin II and 100 Route 6 LLC for property located at 100 Route 6 (Atlas Map 
55, Parcel 12). Applicant appeals a cease-and-desist order issued by Building Commissioner on May 3, 
2023, with respect to property located in the Seashore District.  
 
Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni announced that she had received a request for a continuance 
in this matter from Mr. Henchy. Mr. Henchy requested that the hearing be opened and then continued. 
Mr. Henchy provided several reasons regarding the continuance and noted that this was a complicated 
issue after conducting a review of existing case law. 
 
Prior to voting on a motion to continue, Mr. Henchy, Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni, and 
Members discussed the reasons for the continuance. Members inquired whether Mr. Martin had 
continued to comply with the cease-and-desist order and Mr. Henchy could not confirm that he had as 
he did not have personal knowledge. Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni opined that Mr. Martin 
had to comply with the cease-and-desist order until the ZBA ruled otherwise.  
 
Prior to the vote, Member Crocker announced that he would abstain from the vote to continue this 
matter. 
 
Chair Hultin made a motion to continue the matter of 2023-006/ZBA until August 21, 2023. 
Member Shedd seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Member Shedd – Aye 
Vice Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Abstained 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Chair Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 6-0-1, motion carries.  
 
Board Action 
 
Chair Hultin led the discussion of the election of officers for the ZBA. 
 
Member Shedd made a motion to nominate Chris Lucy as Chair of the ZBA. 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on July 24, 2023  Page 4 of 5 

Member Townsend seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Member Shedd – Aye 
Vice Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Chair Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 
After the vote, Chair Lucy led the discussion on the election of Vice Chair of the ZBA. 
 
Member Townsend made a motion to nominate Darrell Shedd as Vice Chair of the ZBA. 
Member Hultin seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Member Shedd – Abstained 
Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 6-0-1, motion carries.  
 
After the vote, Chair Lucy led the discussion on the election of Clerk of the ZBA. 
 
Vice Chair Shedd made a motion to nominate Heidi Townsend as Clerk of the ZBA. 
Member Medoff seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Aye 
Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 
Chair Lucy led the discussion regarding the selection of a ZBA representative to attend the Town Public 
Panel Discussion on Town Governance scheduled for August 8, 2023, at the Select Board Chambers, in 
Town Hall, at a time to be determined. This event was scheduled by Town Manager Darrin Tangeman to 
educate the public on the roles and responsibilities of Town staff, boards, and committees.  
 
With the Members’ general consent (no vote taken), Vice Chair Shedd will attend the event as the ZBA 
representative.   
 
 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on July 24, 2023  Page 5 of 5 

Topics of Discussion 
 
None 
 
Future Topics of Discussion 
 
Chair Lucy noted that he would like to add a discussion on enforcement of zoning issues on the next 
meeting’s agenda.  
 
Vice Chair Shedd added that he had attended the most recent Planning Board meeting and those 
Members would like to request that the ZBA review the language for Special Permit criteria so it is more 
consistent in its decisions.  
 
Chair Lucy stated to Members that if they wanted to add a topic to next month’s agenda, they must 
send an email only to Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni to request that topic be added. 
 
Chair Lucy announced that the next ZBA meeting will be held on August 21, 2023, at 5:30 pm. 
 
Member Hultin made a motion to adjourn at 7:02 pm. 
Vice Chair Shedd seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Aye 
Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Alexander O. Powers 

Board/Committee/Commission Support Staff 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on August 21, 2023  Page 1 of 5 

TOWN OF TRURO 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
Meeting Minutes 

August 21, 2023 – 5:30 pm 
REMOTE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING 

 
 
Members Present (Quorum): Chris Lucy (Chair); Darrell Shedd (Vice Chair); Art Hultin; Heidi Townsend; 
Nancy Medoff; Dave Crocker (Alt.); Joseph McKinnon (Alt.) 
 
Members Absent:  
 
Other Participants: Barbara Carboni – Town Planner/Land Use Counsel; Robert Weinstein-Select Board 
Liaison; William Henchy-Attorney for Robert J. Martin II (Applicant); Ben Zehnder-Attorney for Bruce 
Jacobson-Trustee (Applicant); Bruce Jacobson-Trustee (Applicant); Katherine Rowe (Applicant); Kimberly 
Chester (Applicant); Alan Cabral-Designer for Kimberly Chester (Applicant); Charles Silva (Applicant); Leif 
Hamnquist-Architect for Charles Silva (Applicant); Brian Carlstrom-Superintendent of the Cape Cod 
National Seashore; Patricia Callinan (Truro Voter) 
 
Remote meeting convened at 5:30 pm, Monday, August 21, 2023, by Town Planner/Land Use Counsel 
Carboni who announced that this was a remote meeting which is being broadcast live on Truro TV 
Channel 18 and is being recorded. Chair Lucy introduced the Members of the ZBA. 
 
Public Comment Period 
 
Chair Lucy invited the members of the public to offer public comments and Chair Lucy recognized 
Attorney Henchy who apologized to the Members and Mr. Martin but stated that he had a veterinary 
emergency at his home and had to depart the meeting to take a family pet to the animal emergency 
hospital immediately. 
 
There were no other public comments made. 
 
Minutes 
 
None 
 
Public Hearings (Continued) 
 
2022-017/ZBA (VAR/SP) - Ebb Tide on the Bay Condominiums for property located at 538 Shore Road 
(Atlas Map 7, Parcel 7, Registry of Deeds title reference: Book 5671, Page 232). Applicant seeks a 
Variance under M.G.L. Ch. 40A § 10 and §40.3.B.2/§30.9.C of the Truro Zoning Bylaw for a reduction in 
number of parking spaces (from 12 spaces to 9); Special Permit under M.G.L. Ch. 40A §6 and §30.7.A of 
the Truro Zoning Bylaw for the relocation of three nonconforming structures on a lot in the Beach Point 
Limited Business District. 
 
Chair Lucy announced that the Applicant had requested a continuance until September 25, 2023. 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on August 21, 2023  Page 2 of 5 

Chair Lucy made a motion to continue the matter of 2022-017/ZBA until September 25, 2023. 
Vice Chair Shedd seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Aye 
Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 
2023-004/ZBA (SPs) - Truro Atlantic View Realty Trust, Bruce A. Jacobson, Trustee for property located 
at 12 Ocean Bluff Lane (Atlas Map 37, Parcel 6). Applicant seeks: (1) Special Permit to approve 
construction on non-conforming lot, including (completed) construction unauthorized by earlier permit, 
and additional square footage; and (2) Special Permit to exceed Gross Floor Area in Seashore District. 
 
Chair Lucy recognized Attorney Zehnder who introduced the Applicant and provided background 
information on the project. Attorney Zehnder also noted that he could not obtain either an engineer or 
architect stamp for the plans from the previous owner as no one would validate prior work and 
calculations. Attorney Zehnder reviewed a historical timeline and photographs of the properties 
abutting the Applicant’s property. 
 
Following the presentation, Members discussed the following highlighted topics: interior space, 
potential encroachment of another owner’s property, obtaining the opinion from the National Seashore 
regarding this project, the proposed driveway, and potential limiting the incremental expansion in the 
future created as a condition for approval. 
 
Attorney Zehnder asked Superintendent Carlstrom if he would like to opine on the project and 
Superintendent Carlstrom noted that the change and massing is consistent with other properties in the 
area but the proposed project is a significant change to the historical structure. 
 
After a lengthy discussion regarding the proposed changes, Chair Lucy asked if any member of the public 
would like to comment and there were none. 
 
Chair Lucy made a motion to continue the matter of 2023-004/ZBA to September 25, 2023. 
Vice Chair Shedd seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Aye 
Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon - Aye 
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on August 21, 2023  Page 3 of 5 

2023-006/ZBA Robert J. Martin II and 100 Route 6 LLC for property located at 100 Route 6 (Atlas Map 
55, Parcel 12). Applicant appeals a cease-and-desist order issued by Building Commissioner on May 3, 
2023, with respect to property located in the Seashore District.  
 
As previously requested during the Public Comments portion of this meeting, Attorney Henchy’s request 
for a continuance in the matter of 2023-006/ZBA was met without opposition from the Members. 
 
Chair Lucy made a motion to continue the matter of 2023-006/ZBA until September 25, 2023. 
Member Medoff seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Aye 
Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 
Public Hearing (New) 
 
Prior to the opening of the new public hearings, Chair Lucy recused himself from the first hearing due to 
conflict of interest and Vice Chair Shedd led the matter of 2023-007/ZBA. 
 
2023-007/ZBA - Kimberly Bell Chester for property located at 38 Fisher Road (Atlas Map 53, Parcel 35). 
Applicant seeks a Special Permit to construct a second story on existing dwelling on nonconforming lot 
(lot area and frontage; front, side, and rear setbacks) in Residential District.  
 
Vice Chair Shedd recognized Ms. Chester who introduced Mr. Cabral and provided background 
information on the project. 
 
Members discussed with Ms. Chester and Mr. Cabral the determination of the structure’s height. Town 
Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni noted that a building that doesn’t have a ridge will have a maximum 
height that does not exceed 23’ and asked if the Members wanted to discuss whether this note applied 
to this project. 
 
Vice Chair Shedd made a motion to grant a Special Permit in the matter of 2023-007/ZBA. 
Member Hultin seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 6-0, motion carries.  
 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on August 21, 2023  Page 4 of 5 

2023-008/ZBA - Charles Silva for property located at 379 Shore Road (Atlas Map 10, Parcel 10). 
Applicant seeks a Special Permit to construct a two-story dwelling replacing a 1½ story dwelling on 
nonconforming lot (lot area and frontage; front setback, side setback, and two dwellings on lot) in the 
Beach Point Limited Business District.  
 
Chair Lucy recognized Mr. Silva who provided background information on the project.  
 
Members discussed with Mr. Silva the proposed new upper-level deck.  
 
Vice Chair Shedd stated that he was not opposed to the project but that it seemed that the ZBA was 
being asked more frequently to skirt the intent of the Bylaw. Vice Chair Shedd cautioned that future 
similar projects may not be approved as the Members have to enforce the intent of the Bylaw. 
 
After Vice Chair Shedd’s comments, a more detailed conversation occurred among the other Members 
and Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni regarding the ZBA’s discretion in making decisions.  
 
Chair Lucy asked if anyone of the public had a question regarding this project, and Chair Lucy recognized 
Ms. Callinan. Ms. Callinan asked what the height of the completed structure would be and Mr. Silva 
replied that he did not know but it would be under the maximum allowable height in accordance with 
the Bylaw. 
 
Mr. Hamnquist joined the conversation and explained the average grade determination and expressed 
concerns that Members would consider conditions for approval of this project. Town Planner/Land Use 
Counsel Carboni noted that the ZBA had the authority to condition any approved projects.  
 
Members then discussed adding a condition to this project by requiring the Applicant to provide a 
certified elevation according to the plans. 
 
Chair Lucy announced that the full Members would vote on this matter.  
 
Member Townsend made a motion to grant a Special Permit in the matter of 2023-008/ZBA with 
conditions related to the height of the building. 
Member Medoff seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Nay 
Chair Lucy - Aye  
Member Hultin - Nay 
So voted, 3-2, motion does not carry.  
 
After the vote, Members expressed what they would like the Applicant to change. Mr. Silva expressed 
his disappointment with the decision, but he will review the plans and resubmit. Mr. Silva thanked the 
Members and departed. 
 
Board Action:  None 
 
 



Meeting Minutes for Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting on August 21, 2023  Page 5 of 5 

Topics of Discussion 

Chair Lucy led the discussion of Special Permit language and requirements with the Members and Town 
Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni. Highlighted topics included: criteria for Special Permit, criteria to 
exceed gross floor area in the Seashore District and the Residential District, the status of the Planning 
Board’s consideration to amend the provision of the Bylaw that permits exceeding gross floor area and 
present it at Town Meeting (Planning Board ultimately decided not to add it to the Warrant and 
therefore did not present it at Town Meeting), reviewed the intent of the Bylaw and how it can be 
interpreted with more clarity, and the ZBA’s authority to interpret the Bylaw as it sees fit. 
 

Chair Lucy led the discussion of enforcement with the Members and stated that it is necessary to step 
up enforcement efforts of the Bylaws. Members discussed Applicants who do not build according to an 
approved Special Permit and then asking for forgiveness after the fact, the possible need to hire another 
building inspector or making the building inspector a full-time role, the suggestion that the Select Board 
create an enforcement officer role whose responsibility to investigates all complaints (Planning Board, 
ZBA, Health & Conservation), and the process to request the Building Commissioner enforce the Bylaw. 
 

Future Topics of Discussion 

Chair Lucy noted that he would like to continue the discussion on enforcement of zoning issues for the 
next meeting’s agenda.  
 

Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni suggested that the Building Commissioner present to the ZBA 
and explain how height is measured and how the average grade is determined.  
 

Chair Lucy also would like to request that the Building Commissioner attend the next meeting to update 
the Members on the cease-and-desist order for the matter of 2023-006/ZBA. Town Planner/Land Use 
Counsel Carboni will investigate that possibility. 
 

Members discussed the possibility of “in-person” meetings and Town Planner/Land Use Counsel Carboni 
will review the current guidance as well as the guidance for hybrid meetings. 
 

Chair Lucy announced that the next ZBA meeting will be held on September 25, 2023, at 5:30 pm. 
 

Vice Chair Shedd made a motion to adjourn at 7:51 pm. 
Member Crocker seconded the motion. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Member Townsend - Aye 
Member Medoff – Aye 
Vice Chair Shedd – Aye 
Chair Lucy – Aye 
Member Crocker - Aye 
Member McKinnon – Aye  
Member Hultin - Aye 
So voted, 7-0, motion carries.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Alexander O. Powers 

Board/Committee/Commission Support Staff 



JOHN CLIFFORD SNOW (1020-1085) 

CHRISTOPHER J. SNOW 

RONALD E. FRIESE 

LAWOFFIGES OF 
SNOW AND SNOW 

90 HARRY KEMP WAY 

PosT OFFICE Box 201 

PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 02857 

OFFICE@SNOWANDSNOWLAW.COM 

WWW.SNOWANDSNOWLAW,COM 

August 30, 2023 

Hand Delivery and Copy Via Email 

Elizabeth Sturdy, Planning Department Assistant 

Town of Truro 

24 Town Hall Road 
Truro, Massachusetts 02666 

Re: Truro Zoning Board of Appeals Application No. 2022-17 /ZBA 

Ebb Tide By The Bay 

538 Shore Road 

Dear Liz: 

4130 

TELEPHONE 

(508) 487-1160 

487-1080 

FAX: 487-2604 

REFER TO FILE NO. 

Enclosed regarding the above referenced pending zoning application, please find the original and nine (9) 

copies of the following: 

1. Town of Truro Amended Zoning Board of Appeals Application for Hearing; and

2. Project Narrative;

Please advise if you have any questions. 

Christopher J. Snow 

CJS:lk 

Enclosures 

Cc: Ms. Sally Mcsween 

William N. Rogers, II, P.E., P.L.S. 

Barbara Carboni, Esq. 

Truro Town Planner/Land Use Counsel (All via Email Only)(w/encs.) 



Town of Truro Zoning Board of Appeals 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA 02666 

AMENDED APPLICATION FOR HEARING - 2022-017 

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Truro, MA Date a I 3 a I 2 a 2 3 
The undersigned hereby files with specific grounds for this application: (check all that apply)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
□ NOTICE OF APPEAL

D Applicant is aggrieved by his/her inability to obtain a permit or enforcement action from the Building
Commissioner on ·(date)

-------

□ Applicant is aggrieved by order or decision of the Building Commissioner on (date) ______ _

which he/she believes to be a violation of the Truro Zoning Bylaw or the Massachusetts Zoning Act.

lxl PETITION FOR VARIANCE - Applicant requests a variance from the tenns Section 40.3.B.2 of the 
Truro Zoning Bylaw concerning (describe) Reduction of 4 packing spaces from existing 12 spaces d11e to 

required relocation of 3 buildings Seeking variance from Sections 30.9.C, and 40.3.B.2. 
D!l APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT 

D Applicant seeks approval and authorization of uses under Section ___ of the Truro Zoning Bylaw 
concerning (describe) ___________________________ _

Ix! Applicant seeks approval for a continuation, change, or extension of a nonconforming structure or use 
under Section30 7 4 of the Truro Zoning Bylaw and M.G.L. Ch. 40A, §6 concerning (describe) Rebuild 
and relocate three non-conforming structures away from beach to the 25' setback line with timber foundations 
elevated to meet FEMA standards, 

Property Address 538 Shore Road Map(s) and Parcel(s) _7�-�7 ____ _ 
Registry of Deeds title reference: Book _3_0_2�8�8----�• Page 288 or Certificate of Title 

Number ________ and Land Ct. Lot# and Plan# _______ _ 
Applicant's Name Christopher J. Snow, Esq. 
Applicant's Legal Mailing Address po Box 291, Provincetown, MA 02657
Applicant's Phone(s), Fax and Email 508-487-1160 - Fax· 508-487-2694 - office@snowandsnowlaw com 
Applicant is one of the following: (please check appropriate box) *written Pennission of the owner is

required for submittal of this application.
D Owner D Prospective Buyer* � Other* 

Owner's Name and Address Ebb Tide on the Bay Condominiums 
Representative's Name and Address SaUy M Mcsween - 240 Dale Street, Syracuse, NY 13208 
Representative's Phone(s), Fax and Email 315-430-6347 - smcswee1@twcny.rr.com 

2. The completed application shall also be submitted electronically to the Town Planner at
plannerlla truro-ma.g:ov in its entirety (including all plans and attachments).

• The applicant is advised to consult with the Building Commissioner, Planning Department, Conservation
Department, Health Department, and/or Historic Commission, as applicable, prior to submitting this
application.

Signature(s) 
Christo 

Your signa ure on this application authorizes the Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals and town staff to visit and enter upon the su�ject property 



1 
 

Amended Variance and Special Permit Application of Ebb Tide on the Bay 
Condominium: Property Address: 538 Shore Road 

 
 

I. Introduction 
A Variance is requested from the provisions of Section 40.3.B.2 and Section 
30.9.C. of the Truro Zoning By-Law for the reduction in the number of parking 
spaces on the property from the current number of 12 spaces to 8 spaces, a 4-
space reduction. 
 
Further, a Special Permit is requested under Section 30.7.A. to authorize the 
relocation of the three (3) buildings on the site moving the buildings back from 
the water due to the significantly and dramatically eroding shoreline. 
 
The Ebb Tide Condominium consists of three (3) buildings, two (2) of which 
contain a separate Unit as well as a third building that contains four (4) Units for a 
total of six (6) Units on the site.  Over the past few years severe erosion has 
occurred undermining all of the buildings and requiring emergency repairs to 
temporarily support the buildings.  For nearly 5 years the Unit Owners with their 
engineers, attorneys and wetlands experts have been attempting to develop an 
overall comprehensive creative plan to relocate the buildings away from the 
eroding shoreline, provide proper waterfront side support for this and abutting 
properties and relocate the fully Board of Health ordered and approved, new 
innovative designed septic system.  The plans presented to the Board are a result 
of that effort and represent the collaboration of the property owners, 
conservation personnel, a Board of Health decision and a Planning Board decision 
approving the project with conditions after a rigorous time-consuming site plan 
review process. 
 
In order to accomplish this building relocation, zoning relief in the forms of a 
Variance as well as a Special Permit are required. 
 
 
 



2 
 

II. Variance Request 
In order to grant a Variance under General Laws Chapter 40A, Section 10, the 
Board must make certain specific findings. 
 
∎ That owing to circumstances related to the soil conditions, shape, or 
topography of this particular piece of land and especially affecting it, but not 
affecting the Beach Point Limited Business District generally, a literal enforcement 
of the two (2) parking spaces per Unit requirement will involve substantial 
financial hardships to the Unit Owners. 
 
∎         a reduction from 12 to 8 parking spaces on this site will not cause 
substantial detriment to the public good. 
 
∎         such a reduction will not nullify or substantially derogate from the intent 
and purpose of the parking requirements of the By-law. 
 
At the present time, portions of the Buildings and Units on the site are at serious 
risk of collapsing into the sea due to the waterfront erosion that has severely 
damaged the supporting structures and portions of the foundations have washed 
away.  The property owners, their engineer, designer, and wetlands expert have 
been working with the Conservation Department of the Town and town 
officials/boards for almost five (5) years on a resolution and the project has been 
approved by the Truro Conservation Commission and the Truro Planning Board 
during site plan review.   
 
Significantly, the applicant originally proposed installation of a seawall that would 
have avoided moving the buildings. However the Conservation Commission 
refused to even consider that alternative in favor of the proposed repositioning of 
the buildings, building a beachfront dune, related beach nourishment and 
redesigning the long pre-existing right-of-way to further protect the sensitive 
coastal resource area.  Attempting to install the necessary bulkheads, 
foundations, supports and other structures in order to maintain the buildings in 
their present location would not be approved by the Conservation Commission 
due to the ongoing erosion occurring at this particular region of the Beach Point 
zoning district.  The Conservation Agent and the Commission Members made it 



3 
 

abundantly clear on many occasions that the only manner in which to stabilize the 
buildings in the long term was to relocate them back towards Shore Road and 
away from the waterfront.  This is exactly what was approved and ordered by the 
Conservation Commission and the buildings would be set back 25 feet from the 
Road, the minimum setback under the Zoning By-law.  Similarly, the Board of 
Health required an innovative septic system designed to be installed between 
Shore Road and the proposed relocated buildings.  However, doing so also means 
that four (4) parking spaces currently on site would need to be eliminated.  There 
is not enough distance between the proposed new building locations and Shore 
Road to preserve tandem parking spaces. 
 
There is no doubt that the need to relocate the buildings is due entirely to the 
topography and soil conditions encountered on the water side of the property.  
The elevations fall down to the water and the property suffers from coastal beach 
conditions involving constantly migrating soils due to both wind and water action.  
The buildings are subject to significant storm damage on a regular basis and at 
times have been unoccupiable.  Clearly, this situation presents a severe and 
significant financial hardship to the Unit Owners, not to mention the domino 
effect risk of loss to abutting properties, and should the owners be unable to 
relocate the buildings as proposed many of the Buildings and Units and abutting 
waterfront properties will foreseeably become subject to a significant risk of 
collapse and condemnation. 
 
The Applicants in this case are confronted with the a situation that in order to 
comply with the decisions of the Board of Health, Conservation Commission and 
Planning Board, it is necessary to remove four (4) parking spaces to accommodate 
the ordered relocation of these buildings, provide beach nourishment and install 
the newly designed septic system embracing the highest standards presently 
available to safeguard against what could otherwise become a public nuisance  
and a threat to public safety, health and the well-being of surrounding property 
owners.    Since Section 40.3.B.2 and Section 30.9.C require that there be two (2) 
parking spaces for each Residential Unit in the Condominium, absent the grant of 
the variance reducing the parking requirement, the relocation cannot be 
accomplished. 
 



4 
 

The Ebb Tide on the Bay Condominium is dealing with a situation in which both 
the topography of this site as well as the shore front soil conditions create a 
situation compelling the relocation of the buildings from the eroding shoreline  
which makes the ability to locate the four (4) spaces impossible.  Accordingly, in 
order to accomplish the relocation and conform to Conservation, Health and 
Planning Board orders, a Variance is necessary authorizing the reduction in the 
number of parking spaces from twelve (12) to eight (8).   
 
Importantly, this particular situation with the lack of depth of the parcel, erosion 
of existing supporting structures and limited area between the buildings and 
Shore Road is not a situation that generally affects properties in the Beach Point 
Limited Business Zone.  Certainly, some other properties on the water side are 
experiencing erosion just as some other properties are experiencing accretion in 
this district.  None of the Route 6 side properties have any of these conditions and 
the situation Unit Owners are experiencing here does not occur generally in the 
Zoning District. 
 
A reduction from twelve (12) to eight (8) parking spaces on the site will not cause 
substantial detriment to the public good nor will it nullify or substantially 
derogate from the intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law. 
 
The parking space reduction will not cause substantial detriment to the public 
good, nor will it cause overcrowding of land,  be detrimental to the water supply, 
cause blight of the environment or damage natural resources, all of which are 
purposes of the Zoning By-laws. On the contrary, the public good will be 
enhanced as will the water supply.  A clear and present danger causing a blight on 
the environment or damage to natural resources will be averted by approval of 
the variance request.   
 
Finally, during the site plan review process, it was determined by opinions from 
the Truro Building Commissioner, Fire and Police Chiefs that the project will not 
cause or threaten public safety access/egress concerns.   
 
 
 



5 
 

III. Special Permit Request 
 
In addition to the parking space Variance, we are also requesting relief in the form 
of a Special Permit under Section 30.7.A to allow the lawfully pre-existing non-
conforming buildings to be moved  back from the water to the 25’ setback from 
Shore Road while adding timber pile foundations elevated to meet FEMA 
standards.   
 
Under Section 30.8.C the Board may only grant a Special Permit if it finds that the 
proposal is in harmony with the general public good and intent of the By-law.  
Further, under Section 30.7.A, lawful, pre-existing non-conforming structures may 
be altered or extended if the Board finds that the alteration of extension will not 
be substantially more detrimental to the neighborhood than the existing non-
conforming structures and that alteration or extension will exist in harmony with 
the general purpose and intent of the By-law.  
 
Applicant is proposing to increase the sideline setback of Building 1 from 7.16 feet 
to 8.00 feet and Building 3 from 2.37 feet to 3.3 feet, reducing the existing 
nonconforming  setbacks .  Although the height of the buildings is being modestly 
increased, this increase is due to the need to elevate the buildings to remove 
same from the flood zone and every other element of this project is primarily 
influenced by federal, state and local mandates.  The actual building heights from 
grade will all be under 30 feet and Zoning compliant and with an appropriate 
scale to the abutting property.  The footprints of the buildings are changing 
slightly, building 1 is 140 square feet greater, Building 2 is 82 square feet greater 
and Building 3 is 98 square feet less, overall, a 124 square foot increase from 
27.8% to 28.9% lot coverage. 
 
Additionally, the distance between the existing building is currently lawfully pre-
existing nonconforming and in order to comply with the mandate of the 
Conservation Commission to move the buildings, the distance between the 
buildings will be necessarily decreased thereby increasing slightly this pre-existing 
non-conformancy.  
 



6 
 

Green space is increasing by 406 square feet from 47.7% to 50.1%.   A new Title 5 
innovative design septic system will be installed with the leaching area being 
moved further from the water and adjacent coastal resources. 
 
The end result will be a much more environmentally sensitive property which has 
been the goal of the Conservation Department.  This will be accompanied with a 
modest reduction in sideline setback non-conformities, a slight increase in lot 
coverage, safer and more secure Buildings and Units and an overall more 
attractive and flood zone compliant property.  Given the significant upgrade and 
improvements there are no substantial detriments to the neighborhood but 
rather significant and substantial benefits.   Although the Buildings will be higher 
and sightly closer together this is a direct mandated result of flood zone 
requirements.  If, as and when any of the neighboring properties are substantially 
improved or replaced, they will have to be built to the same standards.   
 
The purpose of the Truro Zoning By-law, set forth in Section 10.2, is to: 
 
“Promote the health, safety, convenience and welfare of the inhabitants of the 
Town.” 
 
“Prevent the overcrowding of land, conserve the value of land and buildings, 
enable the protection of clean and adequate water supply, conserve natural 
resources, prevent blight of the environment, encourage the most appropriate 
use of land in Truro and promote the Local Comprehensive Plan.” 
 
As stated, green space is increased by 2.4% while building coverage increases by 
1.1%, and presently endangered buildings will be relocated and rebuilt.  Property 
is on Town water and new construction will use water saving devices, existing 
dangerous conditions with Buildings almost falling into the Bay will be removed 
and the buildings will be built to flood zone standards.  This could avert what is a 
looming catastrophic threat to health, safety and environmental concerns. 
 
Clearly the proposal is also harmonious with the public good and the purpose and 
intent of the By-law.  



Project Narrative / Construction Protocol 

Ebb Tide Condominium, 538 Shore Road, North Truro 

The proposed project at 538 Shore Road will follow all of the approved Conditions and Special 
Conditions required by the Truro Conservation Commission. Prior to the commencement of any work 
activities, the project contractor, the project engineer, and the Truro Conservation Commission Agent 
will meet onsite to review the approved site plans and the approved Order of Conditions. No work will 
commence until this onsite meeting occurs with the Truro Conservation Commission Agent. 

1. Installation of erosion controls at the limit of work lines, and the installation of temporary plastic
fencing to prevent debris from blowing into the coastal dune, coastal beach, and the marine/tidal
waters of Cape Cod Bay.

2. The existing pedestrian easement and pathway leading to the coastal beach and Cape Cod Bay, which
is located at the location of the 3 buildings within this property will be maintained, kept open, to provide
safe pedestrian access to the coastal beach and Cape Cod Bay, for all of the subject property owners and
guests {Ebb Tide), and all of the abutting property owners, who have rights to this subject pathway area
leading to the coastal beach and Cape Cod Bay. There will be no obstruction of this access pathway to
the beach, from any construction activities associated with the building construction located at 538
Shore Road {Ebb Tide Condominium). The beach access path must remain clear and open at all times.

3. All access for construction workers, vehicles, and equipment will be from Shore Road, for this
proposed project. All construction workers must stay off of the primary coastal dune wetland resource
areas.

4. Demolition and removal of the three existing buildings onsite at 538 Shore Road will be completed
first within this site. All construction equipment required for the required demolition of the existing
buildings and the removal of the demolished building materials from the property will access the site
from Shore Road. A large front-end loader and large dump truck will be 'utilized to remove the old
building structures. The removal of all demolished building materials includes the use of a dump truck
to take the materials to a proper off-property location {upland location), for the proper disposal of the
construction materials and debris.

5. Proper installation of the required piles for the new flood-compliant structures will occur next.
Construction of the 3 new flood-compliant buildings, and wooden decks will follow after the installation
of the required pilings.

6. Proper removal of old septic system components will occur next. Proper installation of the proposed
Title 5 septic system {FAST system) and leaching field, located as close to Shore Road as possible will be
completed next.

7. Installation of the new sand and shell parking area located landward of the buildings towards Shore
Road will be done next.



8. Restoration of the primary coastal dune, and the dune profile located just seaward of the new

buildings and pilings, showing existing and proposed dune elevations, the volume of sand required to

match the contours at the property lines and at the existing easement area (beach access), with suitable

sand (color, grain size, texture), planting of the dune with American Beach Grass, Bayberry shrubs, and

Beach Plum shrubs. A plan for monitoring and maintaining the primary coastal dune within this subject

property. Match the existing elevations of the coastal dune located at the property lines. Monitoring of

the new coastal dune and the native dune plantings will occur next, with annual reports submitted to

the Truro Conservation Commission.

9. The project contractor is responsible for making sure that the subject building site is kept clean and

free of trash and debris. It is the responsibility of the project contractor to keep the building site clean

on a daily basis, to prevent any trash and/or debris from blowing into the abutting property owners

lands, into Shore Road and the properties (Sutton Place) located on the other site of Shore Road, or into

the protected coastal wetland resource areas and/or wetland buffer zones, including the primary coastal

dune, the coastal beach, and the marine/tidal waters of Cape Cod Bay.

10. At the completion of the project, a Request for a Final Certificate of Compliance will be submitted to

the Truro Conservation Commission.



i. 

TOWN OF TRURO-ORDER OF CONDITIONS 

538 Shore Rd; Map 7, Parcel 7 
DEP file# SE 75-1133 

Ebbtide Condominiums, APPLICANT/OWNER' 

DOCUMENTS 

1. Notice of Intent application; wetland fee transmittal form; project description; variance request;
locus map; abutters list; abutters notice and proof of certified mailing.

2. DEP notice of file number

3. Coastal Dune Restoration and Planting Plan and Construction Protocol by Independent
Environmental Consultants (IEP) dated 2/25/2022.

4. letter from Stan Humphries, 2/4/2022

5. .Emails between IEP & the Truro Conservation 8gent dated 2/15/2022 and 2/26/2022

6. Email from Janis Baker, et al to the Truro Conservation Commission dated 2/7/2022
7. Existing Site Plan of Land. by William N. Rogers, dated September 14, 2020, revised 10/25/2021

with I/A and PD; and Site Plan with revision dated April 14, 2022 showing the access path and
Coastal Dune improvements

8. Plan of Land by William N. Rogers, dated 5/14/2021.

9. Elevation & Floor Plans by William N. Rogers, dated December 2019, 1A.1 thru 1A.5; 2A.1 thru

2A.5; 3A.1 thru 3A.6. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

1.  The area of this waterfront property on Cape Cod Bay is  "'15,681 sf, and it is  currently developed 

with three residential condominium buildings. These 3 buildings are located furthest seaward 
than other dwellings in their vicinity. 

2 .  Over the past 12 year, the buildings at this location have been impacted by significant storms 
that have damaged the foundations and have required emergency permitting from the Town to 

facilitate repairs to the structures. The owners have also added compatible beach sand to the 
areas adjacent to the foundations annually. Because of these conditions the Commission finds 

that they can approve the variance request. 

3. The work approved includes the demolition of the existing buildings and the construction of new
buildings that are elevated to conform with current flood zone standards.

4. The resource areas include the Barrier Beach, Coastal Dune, Coastal Beach and Land Subject to
Coastal Storm Flowage.

The Commission determined that the project could be permitted subject to the following special 
conditions. To the extent that the following conditions modify or differ from the plans, specifications, or 
other proposals submitted with the Notice of Intent, these conditions shall control. 

CONDITION$ 
A. Pre-construction

1. Notice of a work start date shall be given to the Commission in writing at least 48 hours

prior to the commencement of work. The applicant or contractor shall provide the name
and contact information of the person responsible on site for compliance with this Order.

2. Prior to the commencement of work the following activities shall be completed:
• The Order of Conditions shall be recorded at the Barnstable County registry of deeds

and a stamped copy shall be submitted to the Conservation office.
• A sign shall be conspicuously displayed at the site showing the DEP file number assigned

to this project. The sign shall be 2-3 square feet in size, separately staked and read onlv:

MA DEP file# SE 75-1133. Lettering/numbering shall be clearly and permanently
printed, and at least 2" in height.

Page 10-A 



• . A pre-construction site visit shall be scheduled by.the applicant's representative and
include the project Contractor and the Conservation Agent. During this site visit the
Order of Conditions, construction protocols, work limit, access plans and site plan
details shall be reviewed.

3. Members of the Commission, its Agent or the Department of Environmental Protection
(DEP) reserve the right to enter and inspect the property at all reasonable times, until a
Certificate of Compliance is issued, to evaluate compliance with this Order of Conditions,
the Act, 310 CMR 10.00 and Town regulations, and may acquire any information,
measurements, photographs, observations, and/or materials, or may require the submittal
of any data or information deemed necessary by the Commission for that evaluation.

B. Construction & Revegetation

1. The Coastal Dune Restoration & Planting plan, along with the Construction Protocol, are
specifically incorporated into this Order. Annual reporting to the Commission about the
Coastal Dune activities are required for the first 3 years after it is established.

2. During the demolition process, all demo materials, such as concrete shall be removed from
the site. Any sandbags used during this process, or placed on the site previously, shall also
be removed. This condition shall be an ongoing condition to ensure that any debris from
this site and from this project shall be removed from the site, and the beach as it's
exposed.

3. All project materials shall be delivered and stockpiled within the existing driveway area.
4. The site shall be inspected daily to prevent any wind-blown material from entering the

resource area, and all debris or construction material shall be contained in either a covered
truck or a covered dumpster to prevent materials from blowing into the resource area.

5. The easement area may be maintained, but activities in this area must occur in conformance
with the performance standards of the coastal dune.

6. The proposal to use driven piles is approved. If the Applicant's engineer finds that they can
use a less intrusive and impactful method, such as helical piles, then they shall inform the
Commission of the change, in writing.

7. The restricted timeframe for the driving of the piles shall be from Nov 1 to April 1.

8. A construction protocol for driving the piles and ensuring the safety of the neighbor's
property, shall be submitted to the Building Commissioner prior to the start of work.

9. The mitigation to reestablish a healthy and functioning Coastal Dune on this property is a
required part of this project. At a minimum, annual maintenance to add sand, jute netting,
snow fencing and beachgrass to maintain and periodically restore the Dune is expected, and
annual sand nourishment volumes must be reported to the Conservation department.

10. The parking area at this location shall remain pervious, using crushed stone.
11. All roof run-off shall be channeled to gutters and downspouts and drywells. Drywells must

be listed with proper setback from the septic leaching area.
12. The area under the buildings may not be enclosed and may only be used for seasonal/

temporary storage.

C. General Conditions

1. Prior to the commencement of work or pre-construction site meeting, the form provided at
the end of this Order (part G. "Recording Information") shall be completed and stamped at
the appropriate Registry of Deeds, after the expiration of the 10-day appeal period and if no
request for appeal has been filed with the Department of Environmental Protection.

2. This document shall be included in all construction contracts, subcontracts, and
specifications dealing with the work proposed and shall supersede any conflicting contract

Page 10-B 



requlremehts. It is the responsibility of the Applicant, Owner, General Contractor and/or 
successor(s) to ensure that all Conditions of this Order of Conditions are complied with. A 
copy qf this Orde� shall be available at the work site, during normal work hours, or posted, 
until the work is complete. 

3. Work shall be halted ori the site If the Commission, Conservation Agent or DEP determines
that any of the work is not in compliance with this Order of Conditions. Work shall not
resume until the Commission is satisfied that the work will comply and has so notified the
applicant in writing.

4. Any changes in the work described in the Notice of Intent or in the plans and specifications
submitted to the Commission shall be submitted to the Commission in writing for a
determination of whether the change is significant enough to the interests of the Act to
require a new Notice of Intent. No change� �hall b�Jna{h� or lm12lemented in t� prior
to the Commission's determination. Should issuance of additional permits result In a
change in the project, the applicant shall promptly submit such changes to the Commission
for evaluation under this provision.

5. This Order shall apply to any successor in control or successor in interest of the property
described In the Notice of Intent and accompanying plans. These obligations shall be
expressed in covenants in all deeds to succeeding owners of portions of the property.

6. Upon comriletion of this project the applicant shall submit a request to the Conservation
Commission to receive a Certificate of Compliance. The Applicant or Owner shall certify in
writing that the work was completed as shown on the plans and documents referenced
above. The applicant is required to submit an as-built plan from a registered professional
Engineer, Land surveyor or Sanitarian certifying that the work has been conducted as shown
on the plan(s) and documents referenced above and as conditioned by the Commission for
the public record.

Page 10-C 



Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection 

Bureau of Resource Protection - Wetlands 

WPA Form 5 - Order of Conditions 
Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act M.G.L. c. 131, §40 

E. Signatures

Provldod by MussDEP;

SE# 75-1133 
MussDEP FIio # 

obEP riaiisadio,1·1r ·· 

Truro 
city/Town 

4 

This Order is valid for three years, unless otherwise specified as a special 
/YI@ ... 1/ 'le J}{J ;}-;).condition pursuant to General Conditions #4, from the date of Issuance. 1 Dato of 1slanoe 

Please Indicate the number of members who will sign this form. , . . . .1 .....

This Order must be signed by a majority of the Conservation Commission. 2. Number of Signers 
The Order must be mailed by certified mall (return receipt requested) or hand delivered to the applicant. A 
copy also must be mailed or hand delivered at the same time to the appropriate Department of 
Environmental Protection Regional Office, If not filing electronically, and the property owner, If different 
from applicant. 

Signature ·· 

Signature 

Signature 

Signature 

D by hand delivery on 

Date 

wpaform5.doc • rev 511812020 

Printed Name · · · ·· · · 

Printed Name 

·Printed Name ·

Page 11 of13 

/ 



























































































 

ALL FIGURES SEASHORE DISTRICT TOTAL GROSS FLOOR 

AREA 

 
Project:   Rowe Jacobson 
Document Issued: 2023.09.14 
From:   JNA 
 
 

 

 

 

 





May 3, 2023 

Mr. Robert Martin 
P.O. Box 891 
North Truro, Ma. 02652 

RE; 100 Route 6 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Building Department 

24 Town Hall Road 

P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: 508-349-7004, Ext. 131 Fax: 508-349-5508 

By: REGULAR MAIL and by CERTIFIED MAIL# 7022 2410 0000 0167 9098 

Mr. Martin, 

Regrettably, 
I am issuing a CEASE and DESIST order for the business that you are currently 
operating at 100 Route 6 Truro, Ma .. commonly referred to as" Jack's Garage" . 

This operation is in violation of the Town of Truro Zoning Bylaws paragraph 30.3 
Seashore District item 12 which states, " Lawfully pre-existing non-conforming 
commercial uses and structures may continue, but in no case shall the use be altered or 
converted to another commercial use " . The current use is an alteration and 
intensification of the prior use and therefore NOT ALLOWED. 

This CEASE and DESIST order is effective immediately. 

You have the right appeal this decision and if this office can assist you in that endeavor 
please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Regards, 

Richard Stevens 
Building Commissioner 



















10/2021 
Write a description for your map. 

Legend    

MASSDOT Truro

200 ft
N

➤➤

N



4/2023 
Write a description for your map. 

Legend    

MASSDOT Truro

200 ft
N

➤➤

N
Image © 2023 Airbus

Image © 2023 Airbus

Image © 2023 Airbus



From: Johnson, Cheryl M
To: Elizabeth Sturdy; Barbara Carboni
Cc: Darrin Tangeman; Arthur Hultin; Bill Henchy; Bobby Martin; andrewmaiken@icloud.com; Carlstrom, Brian;

McKean, Lauren; Reynolds, Leslie M
Subject: 100 Route 6 Truro ZBA hearing - letter from CCNS
Date: Friday, July 21, 2023 9:41:31 AM
Attachments: Truro Town Counsel findings 1993 and 2000 re commercial uses.pdf

100 Route 6 former Jacks Gas - CCNS letter to Planning Bd 4-12-23.pdf
NPS letter re Jack"s Gas appeal to ZBA July 2023.pdf

Liz and Barbara,

I am sending correspondence with attachments from the Superintendent concerning the July
24, 2023, Zoning Board of Appeals hearing.

Please forward the materials to the Zoning Board of Appeals members at your earliest
convenience.

Sincerely,
Cheryl

Cheryl M. Johnson
Executive Assistant
Cape Cod National Seashore
99 Marconi Site Road
Wellfleet, MA  02667

office: 508-957-0701
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

mailto:cheryl_johnson@nps.gov
mailto:ESturdy@truro-ma.gov
mailto:bcarboni@truro-ma.gov
mailto:dtangeman@truro-ma.gov
mailto:AHultin@truro-ma.gov
mailto:whenchy@henchylaw.com
mailto:rjm2const@gmail.com
mailto:andrewmaiken@icloud.com
mailto:Brian_Carlstrom@nps.gov
mailto:Lauren_McKean@nps.gov
mailto:Leslie_Reynolds@nps.gov













































 


 


United States Department of the Interior 
 


NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 


Cape Cod National Seashore 


99 Marconi Site Road 


Wellfleet, MA 02667 
 


IN REPLY REFER TO: 


C3815 


Tract No. 14-3516 


July 21, 2023 


Arthur F. Hultin Jr, Chair 


Truro Zoning Board of Appeals 


Town of Truro 


P.O. Box 2030 


Truro, MA   02666 


 


Dear Mr. Hultin, 


 


This letter concerns the Truro Zoning Board of Appeals hearing regarding the former Jack’s Gas 


site at 100 Route 6 in Truro, MA. A Cease-and-Desist order is appropriate in this instance, and 


we are aware of the order issued by the Building Commissioner on May 3, 2023.  


 


We are opposed to a change in use to commercial sales of landscaping materials within Cape 


Cod National Seashore (National Seashore). This is not an intensification of use that can be 


authorized by special permit. The NPS respectfully requests that the Zoning Board of Appeal 


deny the appeal to be consistent with town zoning bylaws that do not authorize new commercial 


uses  and with prior Town of Truro legal counsel findings for commercial properties within the 


town’s Seashore District of 1993 and 2000 (see enclosure).  


 


The Cape Cod National Seashore is supported by Federal Zoning Standards Regulation 36 CFR 


Part 27.1 (b) which states “The standards hereby established for approval of zoning bylaws or 


amendments of zoning bylaws—are intended: (1) To contribute to the effect of prohibiting the 


commercial and industrial use, other than existing commercial or industrial use not inconsistent 


with the purposes of the Act of August 7, 1961 (75 Stat. 284, 291), of all property within the 


boundaries of the Cape Cod National Seashore….” The Truro zoning provisions at issue are 


intended to fulfill this obligation by prohibiting all commercial and industrial uses in the 


Seashore District, except those lawfully pre-existing non-conforming uses. See Bylaw §30.3.   


 


In spring 2023, we previously commented on commercial site plan deliberations and provide that 


letter for additional context (see enclosure). 


 


The ongoing site modifications and proposed changes in use are not “lawfully pre-existing non-


conforming commercial uses.” Moreover, Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, Section 10 


provides that “no variance may authorize a use or activity not otherwise permitted in the district 







in which the land or structure is located” unless expressly allowed under local ordinance or by-


law.  We are unaware of any provisions in the Town of Truro Bylaw that expressly authorizes a 


use variance. In fact, Section 30.3.B.12 specifies that “[l]awfully pre-existing non-conforming 


commercial uses and structures may continue, but in no case shall the use be altered or 


converted to another commercial use.” Accordingly, the NPS is seeking consistency with town 


zoning and denial of this appeal.  


 


Sincerely, 


 


 


 


Brian T. Carlstrom 


Superintendent 


 


Enclosures 


 


cc:   Barbara Carboni  


Darrin Tangeman 


Bill Henchy 


Bobby Martin 


Andrew Aiken 
  


       





				2023-07-21T09:34:13-0400

		BRIAN CARLSTROM































United States Department of the Interior

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

Cape Cod National Seashore 

99 Marconi Site Road 

Wellfleet, MA 02667 

IN REPLY REFER TO: 

C3815 

Tract No. 14-3516 

July 21, 2023 

Arthur F. Hultin Jr, Chair 

Truro Zoning Board of Appeals 

Town of Truro 

P.O. Box 2030 

Truro, MA   02666 

Dear Mr. Hultin, 

This letter concerns the Truro Zoning Board of Appeals hearing regarding the former Jack’s Gas 

site at 100 Route 6 in Truro, MA. A Cease-and-Desist order is appropriate in this instance, and 

we are aware of the order issued by the Building Commissioner on May 3, 2023.  

We are opposed to a change in use to commercial sales of landscaping materials within Cape 

Cod National Seashore (National Seashore). This is not an intensification of use that can be 

authorized by special permit. The NPS respectfully requests that the Zoning Board of Appeal 

deny the appeal to be consistent with town zoning bylaws that do not authorize new commercial 

uses  and with prior Town of Truro legal counsel findings for commercial properties within the 

town’s Seashore District of 1993 and 2000 (see enclosure).  

The Cape Cod National Seashore is supported by Federal Zoning Standards Regulation 36 CFR 

Part 27.1 (b) which states “The standards hereby established for approval of zoning bylaws or 

amendments of zoning bylaws—are intended: (1) To contribute to the effect of prohibiting the 

commercial and industrial use, other than existing commercial or industrial use not inconsistent 

with the purposes of the Act of August 7, 1961 (75 Stat. 284, 291), of all property within the 

boundaries of the Cape Cod National Seashore….” The Truro zoning provisions at issue are 

intended to fulfill this obligation by prohibiting all commercial and industrial uses in the 

Seashore District, except those lawfully pre-existing non-conforming uses. See Bylaw §30.3. 

In spring 2023, we previously commented on commercial site plan deliberations and provide that 

letter for additional context (see enclosure). 

The ongoing site modifications and proposed changes in use are not “lawfully pre-existing non-

conforming commercial uses.” Moreover, Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, Section 10 

provides that “no variance may authorize a use or activity not otherwise permitted in the district 



in which the land or structure is located” unless expressly allowed under local ordinance or by-

law.  We are unaware of any provisions in the Town of Truro Bylaw that expressly authorizes a 

use variance. In fact, Section 30.3.B.12 specifies that “[l]awfully pre-existing non-conforming 

commercial uses and structures may continue, but in no case shall the use be altered or 

converted to another commercial use.” Accordingly, the NPS is seeking consistency with town 

zoning and denial of this appeal.  

Sincerely, 

Brian T. Carlstrom 

Superintendent 

Enclosures 

cc:  Barbara Carboni 

Darrin Tangeman 

Bill Henchy 

Bobby Martin 

Andrew Aiken 



ZBA HEARING re: 100 Route 6 i?cvD 2t;rt;<T?2 !,:-11.1.A-1 
Au-21-23 rim·\I\l&JX;W��1£{f lC�

1 

Stephen Williams - from mid-June 1985 to mid-2001 - employed by Toff as 
the Bldg Comm/ Agent to the BofH/Zoning Enforcement Officer/Secretarial 
back-up to all 3 ... And in all those years ... I have never seen a Zoning case more 
screwed up by more people than this one! 

In mid-January of this year, the site of 100 Route 6 ( aka Jack's Gas) which 
is identified as sheet 55, parcel 12 in the Assesssor's Atlas w/ NPS Tract #14-3515 
@ 1.7 acre and owned by the Aiken Family Realty Trust began to be used again. 

I haven't presented a case to the ZBA for 20 years ± so I hope you will bear 
with me if I'm a little bit rusty here. 

The first mistake: was the lease itself by Andrew Aiken to Robert Martin 
which according to an 'Independent' * article ( My-18-23 attached below )

could 1✓ only be used for the processing of firewood and stockpiling of landscaping 
materials ... and shall be subject to rules and regulations of both the Town of Truro 
and the National Seashore." This is false! The problem was/is that the stated 
premise of the lease DOES NOT CONFORM to either Truro zoning or 
NPS regulations ... And 'the stockpiling of landscaping materials' will never 
have any plausible claim to being a 'pre-existing non-conforming use' 

The second mistake: was that the Truro Zoning Officer Richard Stevensl and 
subsequently, the Land Use Officer Barbara Carboni both declared to Martin 
( as also noted in the newspaper * article cited above ) that: "it is presumed 
that the sale of firewood continues to be protected as a pre-existing non-conforming 
use." This is false! The two Town 'experts' on Zoning 'presumed' and gave 
false opinions to Mr. Martin� .. upon which he, in part, relied. The only 
pre-existing non-conforming use on this site was that of a gas-station ( see 
NPS letter of Ap-12-23 to Anne Greenbaum * attached below) 

The third mistake: was that Mr. Martin began to expand his "use" of the 
site in further violation of Truro zoning and NPS guidelines and that over 
the next several weeks there appeared a series of large piles of DIRT, 
LOAM, SHELLS, and GRAVEL, as well as a LARGE RACK of 'FOR-



2 

SALE-TO-TRANSIENTS' FIREWOOD which also functions as a 
STRUCTURE and a SIGN ( see Tmro zoning definitions), and which is 
actually located off-site and within the layout of Route 6. ( see map* below) 

(- As the non-conforming uses at this site increased I found myself more 
frequently asked whether this was lawful ... to which I would respond "No" 
but urging people to speak to the Zoning Enforcement Officer, Stevens~) 

The fourth mistake: was that on Ap-12-23 the Tmro Planning Board held a 
hearing for a "Commercial Site-Plan Review". I don't know how this came 
to pass but the anomaly of having such a hearing for a commercial venture that 
was patently illegal (- under both Town and NPS regulations -) remained 
unstated and unexplained. The PB Chair, Anne Greenbaum, clearly wanted 
to help Mr. Martin ... even volunteering to meet him on-site to 'make a map' 
although it should be noted that a map is readily available in the Assessors 
Atlas ( S-55/P-12 ). I enlarged that map * ( attached below ) and noted that 
"structures", such as the firewood rack, which appears to be located off­
site and in the Route 6 layout, would also be subject to the 50' frontline 
setback requirement in the Seashore Dishict. Toward the end of that 
meeting it was also acknowledged that the NPS had sent a letter * ( dated 
Ap-12-23 attached * below ) to the Planning Board but the contents were 
not discussed and it took days to obtain a copy of it and understand why ... 

The fifth mistake: Was mine. On Ap-21-23 after reading the NPS letter 
which confirmed what I already knew about pre-existing non-conforming 
land-use ... ( and which repudiated the positions of Stevens & Carboni & 
Greenbaum ) and still seeing such a complete lack of enforcement for 
nearly five months, I solicited a meeting with Darrin Tangeman ( Tmro 
Town Manager) and, after being rebuffed and canceled twice, I conveyed 
a message to him that he was facing both a scandal and a lawsuit and that 
he might want to talk to me before it hit the local newspapers. During a 45 
minute meeting I conveyed to Tangeman that his two resident experts on 
zoning were either incompetent or too lazy to stick their heads up out of 
their 'silo's' to actually do their jobs. I told him I asked to meet him as a 
courtesy since it seemed that HIS JOB was to make sure they did their jobs. 

I noted that under normal condition he might get his Zoning Enforcement 
Officer (Stevens) to write "a cease and desist' order to Mr. Martin but that 
the situation had developed beyond 'normal'. The problem now was that a 



3 

"cease & desist letter of enforcement" would be interpreted as an 'opinion' 
which could be challenged before the Zoning Board of Appeals ... a process 
likely to be repeatedly delayed as Mr. Martin was quoted in the papers: 
"Until a judge stamps a document that says I can't be there, rm going to be there .... '' 

( Independent* My-18-23 ). What should happen, I suggested to Tangemen, 
was that Town Counsel (Koppleman & Paige) should be instructed to take 
Mr. Martin to court and get a 'restraining order' enjoining him from all 
commercial activity at that site and noting that fines for zoning violations 
are set at $300 per-violation-per-day ... so, as an example, the four signs that 
had recently appeared on site (- without permits, I presume! ~) would 
cumulatively be subject to fines of $1,200 per day or $36,000 per month! 

But given the complicity of town officials enabling this situation to have 
developed thus far, I further suggested that Mr. Martin should be offered 
the courtesy of a 'schedule-for-compliance' ... such as: WEEK #1: Remove 
all signage from this site or face the commencement of fines as noted 
above. WEEK #2: Remove all firewood from the standing-firewood-rack 
back into the piles (beside the piles of gravel & seashells) and remove the 
rack from this site or face the commencement of fines as noted above. 
WITHIN the following 2-3 MONTHS: Mr. Martin can use, of sell off to 
other contractors, the miscellaneous piles of loam, gravel, shells and 
firewood but: UNDER THE STRICT PROVISO THAT HE IS NOT TO

REPLENISH ANY OF THESE ITEMS AT ANY TIME FOR ANY REASON ... at 
the end of which time he will be solely responsible for site-cleanup and 
the removal of any-and-all such remaining commercial products. ( My two 
page summary * of that meeting with/for Tangemen is attached below. ) 

As a closing note I further suggested to Tangemen that Town Counsel 
should initiate an identical suit against Andrew Aiken (the land-owner) 
noting that, as the land-lord of said site he is complicit by the terms of the 
lease and is equally responsible for bringing this case to an end. 

ELEVEN DAYS LATER on May 3rd 2023 Mr. Stevens sent a 'cease-and­
desist' letter * (attached below) to Mr. Martin which indicated to me that 
Mr. Tangeman had directed him to choose the slowest possible method of 
resolving this case rather than getting town counsel to pursue this matter 
more expeditiously. 



4 

So ... so far we have the following cast of characters: Andrew Aiken (as the 
landlord of record); Robert Martin (as the violating tenant of record) Richard 
Stevens (as the zoning enforcement officer of record) Barbara Carboni (as the 
land-use expert of record) Anne Greenbaum (as the chair of the Planning 
Board) Darrin Tangeman (as the Town Manager of record) and myself, 
Stephen Williams (as ex-Zoning Officer, Ret.) All of these people have 
opined in this farce ... and, yes, so far, all of us have accomplished absolutely 
nothing! Have I left anyone out? Oh ... yeah! Brian Carlstrom ( the NPS 
Superintendent ) who, I feel compelled to note, seems more interested in 
seizing the P-Town 'dune shacks' than acting as a responsible partner to 
resolve this minor if illegal and messy 'eye-sore' situation in Truro. 

So I suggest that what the Park should do is withdraw the "freedom from 
condemnation certificate" last renewed in March 2000 ( see NPS letter of 
Ap-12-23 previously cited ) for its violations of Truro & NPS regulations at 
this site and then "take it by eminent domain". At 1.7 acres the site's only 
plausibly lawful use would be for ONE single-family residence (SFR) and 
that given the unknown extent of the gas-spill which effectively terminated the 
only pre-existing non-conforming gas-station-use at the site the assessed value of 
the land ( with or without potable water? ) is never likely to rise above the 
$159,500 of it's 'assessed valuation' today. 

Today, Au-21-23, the ZBA will consider "The Martin Case." There is only 
one possible decision. And, given the number of relevant and concuning 
opinions from previous Town Counsels and letters from the National 
Seashore, that is: "TO UPHOLD THE-CEASE-AND-DESIST // STOP­
WORK ORDER FROM THE TRURO ZONING ENFORCEMENT 
OFFICER AND DIRECT MR. MARTIN TO VACATE THE PREMISES." 

Stephen Williams 

• Note Assessors Map #52 ... and 'Independent' article ( May 18, 23 ) ...
and NPS letter ( Ap-12-23 ) ... and my post-meeting notes to
Tangeman... and Stevens 'cease-and-desist' letter of My-3-23
all attached below along with Postscripts #1 & #2.



5 

POSTSCRIPT #1-Au-31-23 

But on Au-21-23 ... and for the SECOND time ... the ZBA hearing regarding 
an obviously non-permitted use of 100 Route 6 was POSTPONED ... 
( seems the dog ate Att. Henschy' s briefs ). This is, as I explained to Mr. 

Tangeman, the way it works when a litigant is stalling for time ... First file 
for a hearing just AFTER the original filing deadline (which buys you the 
first month) and then get a POSTPONEMENT at the first ZBA hearing 

( which gets you a second month ) and then claim the dog ate my 
homework at the third ZBA hearing to get a second POSTPONEMENT 
(which gets you a third month). And then at the fourth ZBA hearing claim 

something else and ask for yet another postponement which gets you a 

fourth month ... and so on ... 

Obviously, this cannot go on forever but the ZBA might seek legal 
guidance if they feel their patience is being deliberately stressed since 

holding a hearing after being asked for yet another postponement and 
then possibly finding against the appellant sets up the next delaying tactic 
of the appellant ... suing the Town and asking for an injunction, or a stay of 
enforcement, until that case can be resolved in court ... and then ( lest we omit ) 
asking for postponements in court. 

All this leaves two questions unanswered: 

#1: When and what decision will the ZBA reach at its next hearing? 

#2: What and when will the Town Manager manage to do then in terms 
of managing this increasingly ridiculous and embarrassing farce? 



6 

POSTSCRIPT #2 -- S-14-23 

It seems to me that another means-to-resolution of this impacted-issue 
might be to explore the purchase of this site by a neutral town entity ... 
such as the Truro Conservation Trust. 

I remember helping Ancil Chaplin arrange a meeting to negotiate "The 
Trust'' purchase of the triangular lot ( between Route 6 and 6A just south 
of South Pamet Rd in the center of Truro ) from Byron Darling and how he 
managed to include a provision that would allow The Trust to lease this 
parcel out for the specific and singular purpose of relocating the Truro 
Post Office ... if it ever needed to be removed from the overflowing bank of 
the Pamet estuary to somewhat higher ground, and still remain in the 
1center' of town. 

In this instance, and I think it would be in keeping with the intent of their 
general purposes, The Trust might consider offering to buy the site @ 100 
Route 6 ( aka: Jacks Gas ) from the Aiken family. With its assessed 
valuation of $159,500 ... and with all the restrictions on this 1.7 acre parcel 
not to mention the environmental encumbrance of an unresolved gas-spill 
( all of which detract from the value of this lot ), the Aikens might be very 
grateful to be 'relieved' of this lot. It would be a fabulous fund-raising 
issue for The Trust not to mention great publicity for their cause. The lot 
could be held by The Trust or given to the National Seashore for whatever 
tax credits might be available for gifts from such environmental trusts. 

In any event, the present sih,tation is desperately in need of resolution or, 
to put it more bluntly, better management! Meanwhile the site continues to 
be re-stocked with misc piles of materials and trees continue to disappear 
from the back of the lot. And the only response by the Town seems to be: 

"I-hope-this-will-all-go-away-before-I-actually-have-to-do-my-job!" 



..... 

... 



� 

�i) 
� 9V 
- (.) 

� 
� 

I� 

·Cease Busi:nessonRoute 6
Commercial use of the foriner Jack's,Gas
site is prohibited, say•Seashore officials

. :· . • . -· .. . · . . . 

By Sam Pollak

TRURO-� Robert Martin ·11as Seashore • was.- created,, · Diay • 
been selling firewoodJrom . continue,. bµt "IQ no � 
a roadside Jot at 100 ·Route shall the use· be altered -· or 
6 since. he began renting It . • converted to anotl1e't' com� · �-
on Jan. 15. This· spring; :the merdal use,». a<:cording< to 
business's footprint� theTiurobylaw. . . • •• '· .. 
to grow larger and flatter;:11$ - Accqrdlrig to �.

==•·•��..a •... signsforRJMEnterp�· . of�e�ote. Other.coni-:-
Martln didn't . �- for. • merdar·uses, �:-the

r 

permission to expand tile sale c,f � allCl land.:: 

E�-� R&-. .. �� .. ��°'-�,·.
II · • • • •• • • • • . . 8oam of.Appeals� . . . . 

5C�4ft�- :if:�;; i$"1'EE vens after .the town was ad;,, the si�in1981. .. > _· mote; 'J.befe is no commer.;; • facts, but_ l was uiidet the topsoil bas beera stdpped off
vised in a letter from cape __ "At that hearlng,. the c;ial•thatcan occuronthls as.1UJliption that I� do andce>Veredwithwoodclups .. 
Cod National seaSho� Supt. Sea.sh� explained the: an-'- pr:operty." .. ·. .•. • . that." . . 

-
•· .. ·... All of that seems:to fly In 

=·= .. ��. mm .. =�=· :-S"!t�=·:t•� 
. � sak1 this �he .• mg� :""1:bin � �� boarcl,that ('it is � tlng�tlmberint.lu!Se..shore toMq·� . . . . .· _· plans to appeal tile orciefJo Distrkt�1:he-�zon;,, !l!!,t ·t11e _-·safi of firewood· • for -� �-�-·dim_· _ • Martin $aid that he has

cease operations an(! � he ._. mg • �. Il()t - �t .the • continues to· be �ed n controlllng mush an4_· clear7 • .. � to. stop . importing

:e°8!�':��
of"sel

�-- ����,"- �p���---�=w:·�'s. =:=s:O� 
The L?-acre pr�. . At an .Aprll 12 planJJfng L1s . ceaSlhmd_;clesist l!!fe, thepropertyc;an ''only �� material and of firewood 

formerly �e site ofJack1s board nieeting tcFI�ew lett�� �d Carboni, �'ts�- beusedfot,$he�·of wm continue as he appeals 
Gas, is in ·National seashore. Martin's site plan, Seamo:re additional material on the. = -� of • the order. • • .. 
Both federal Iq!Ulallons .md . 1'1aimir� � ,aid pro....,;,, an<! <he ti,< d,at � ;;;but .•. "unto a r!'. stuDps a
the town's zo� ,bylavrs : _that,clftetagasspillli119�, . the�teifselfwasbelngmod- lhe ten,ant .11:map be� -�ac:umenttf(t lcan'tbe
stipulate that commerdal the Seashore allowec! :�e 'ifle<L" ·- ._ _· . __ • ._· .. • _. _ ·to ruleS and-�- �;I'mgoingtobethere,"
use of a property that was ·• Aikens to sell flrewo(,c:l asa __ . -Martin told the I�.; _ � the town),5--, tie said "They want tQ render 
active before 1961, when the "sto� measure because dent _that "th.ere were a few • • �Natjgnal seashore:,, . · . . the land ust,!ess, and Pm not 

trees cut down" at the site Ai the Ai>ril 12 ineet- iminetodothat.11 
• 



United States Department of the Interior 

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

IN REPLY REFER TO: 

C3815 
Tract No. 14-3516 

April 12, 2023 

A,nne Greenbaum, Chairman 
Truro Planning Board 
Town of Truro 
P.O. Box 2030 
Truro, MA 02666 

Dear Ms. Greenbaum: 

Cape Cod National Seashore 
99 Marconi Site Road 
Wellfleet, MA 02667 

This letter concerns the Truro Planning Board 2023-002 SPR hearing of April 12, 2023 for 
Commercial Site Plan Review (SPR) approval at the former Jack's Gas site. We oppose 
authorization (?fthe proposal to sell "firewood and other materials' at 100 Route 6 in Truro, MA, 
within Cape Cod National Seashore (National Seashore). When providing for establishment of 
the National Seashore, Congress set forth that commercial and industrial uses were prohibited 
within its boundaries except and unless permitted by the Secretary. The federal Zoning 
Standards Regulation for the National Seashore at 36 C.F .R. § 27.1 implements this directive by 
prohibiting commercial and industrial uses that were not in existence in 1961. The Town Zoning 
Bylaw incorporated the prohibition in Section 30.2 and 30.3. Notably, Section 30.3.B.12.. 
specifies that "[l]awfully pre-existing non-conforming commercild us�s and structures may 
continue, but in no case shall the use be altered or converted to another commercial use." 
(emphasis added). 

The lawfully pre-existing commercial use at the time of National Seashore establishment was 
solely as a gasoline station. This use was originally autb.oriz.ed to continue; however, the use was 
abandoned on or about Febrwuy 1998. Counsel for the former owner of the property represented 
to the Zoning Board of Appeals in 2004 that the sale of firewood at the site began in 1981. The 
National Seashore explained and clarified with both the owner and the Town of Truro in 2004 
that the ancillary sale of firewood at the gasoline station is not a law:fully pre-existing, non­
conforming commercial use within the Seashore District under the town zoning bylaw, nor under 
the park's enabling legislation. 

The gasoline station commercial use ceased in approximately February 1998, and the tanks and 
pumps were subsequently removed. The Certificate of Suspension of Condemnation of 
Commercial and Industrial Property (CSC) for the commercial gasoline operation has not been 



2 
renewed since March 2000. Under the Town of Truro•s Zoning Bylaw, Section 30.7.C, a use 
cannot be reestablished that has been abandoned for more than two years, and any future use 
must be in conformance with the current zoning bylaw. As a condition of the former gasoline 
station spill settlement, the applicant agreed never to operate a gasoline station in the state. Toe 
pre-existing, non-conforming use for a commercial gasoline station has been abandoned and no 
new commercial use can lawfully be established in the Seashore District 

In 2004, we made clear to Mr. Aileen that although he had been selling firewood from the gas 
station for a time, because that commercial use was not in existence in 1961, it was not a 
lawfully pre-existing noi:i-conforming use. Nevertheless, in order to support clean-up of the site, 
the seashore did not object to temporary.firewood sales from the property provided proceeds 
were used to support the state government's cost of clean-up. It now appears that authorization of 
continued temporary firewood sales activity to fund the gasoline spill cleanup is no longer 
needed as the Aileen family is no longer operating the site. Approving a Commercial Site Plan or 
issuing a variance and/or special permit to allow this non-conforming commercial use (a 
business selling firewood and other materials) in the absence ofNational Seashore approval, 
would be unlawful. 

Moreover, the site has been altered and developed for expanded non-conforming commercial use 
in the absence of authori7.ation or permit, which is in direct contravention of Section 30.1.A. This 
and any other commercial activity should cease, and the materials be promptly removed. 
Furthermore, unintentional introduction of invasive non-native insects through firewood and 
landscaping materials distribution and sales is a significant concern for the National Seashore. 

In summary, we are opposed to Site Plan Review approval of commercial uses of this property 
that were not lawfully pre-existing in 1961 and are therefore unlawful. This "new" commercial 
use would be substantially detrimental to the Seashore District We recommend referral of this 
matter to Town Land Use Counsel. 

Sincerely, 

Brian Carlstrom 
Superintendent 

Enclosures 

cc: 
Truro Town Administrator 
Truro Select Board Chair 
Truro Town Planner/Land Use Counsel 
Cape Cod Com.mission 
Cape Cod County Commissioners 



Considerations for Tangeman after our 10:00 to 10:45 minute meeting on April 
21, 2023 ... as an 'up-date' emailed to him that evening: 

1. Another reason Richard Stevens should not write a letter of enforcement vis­
a-vis Robert Martin II is that it would likely be assumed to be a zoning
'interpretation' which Martin could take to the ZBA for a secondary review ...
seeking their approval via a judgment. It should be noted that a Use-Variance
would be required but Truro has a restrictive bylaw which means that uses which
are not expressly permitted are expressly NOT permitted ... to which, in
addition, Truro specifically prohibits "use-variances". It would be a waste of
time but it might complicate proceedings and result in undesirable delays!

2. On the afternoon (4:00 pm±) of our meeting on Friday, Martin was seen
accepting a delivery of a long-bed dump truck containing approximately 34 tons
of new top soil... now located to the north of more clamshells ... which seems to
indicate that he is forging ahead with his "unlawful use' and which is likely to be
the basis of "claims of hardship" (a// self generated) after he has to give up using
this site. I went by the site this afternoon to confirm this and also noted a very
large NEW SIGN on the northwest hill behind his piles of dirt/gravel etc. which he
is clearly intending to expand and to sell. Has Martin applied for a sign permit or
is this just another indication of his contempt for Town Bylaws? Sign permits are
the purview of the Building Commissioner who administers the Sign Code ... has
Stevens issued a sign permit? EVERYDAY YOU DELAY IN THE
COMMENCEMENT OF AN ENFORCEMENT ACTION IS LIKELY TO SEE HIM
EXPANDING HIS USE AND THE COMPEXITIES OF ENFORCEMENT WILL
BECOME INCREASINGLY EXPENSIVE! For everyone!

3. My last note is that you should consider having the POLICE department begin
to photograph this lot on a daily basis .... from the north and from the south so 
that any further transgressions can be identifies and documented. If they are 
"caught11 doing this by Martin it will send a signal that he is on thinner and thinner 
ice but again I urge you to get Town Counsel to write a "Cease and Desist" 
directive ASAP with the step by step reduction as I noted to you in our 
meeting. Emphasizing there is to be no "replenishment' of any of these 
piles: dirt/shells/gravel etc under any circumstances. 

If you want or need any further assistance from this old retiree ... please feel free 
to contact me. I can clarify the terms I laid out to you for Town Counsel if that 
would help. 

All the best; 

Stephen Williams 



Considerations for Tangeman page 2: April 22, 2023: 

1: Pondering what I saw at "the site" yesterday is seems more and more 
likely that this is going to be an increasingly messy and protracted legal-battle. 
Take the issue of 'signage' and note that I forgot to mention that he has put up 
two very large signs in the past few days ... the first attached atop the wood rack 
which is illegal, because· the rack itself is located in the Route 6 layout and thus 
constitutes an 'off-premise' advertisement which are not allowed by the Sign 
Code ... and the second on the hillside to the northwest which appears to be much 
larger than what the sign code allows any legitimate businesses. Both of these 
signs should be measured and photographed and may provide additional 
evidence that the present tenant is proceeding in a scoff-law manner and may not 
have even bothered to apply for sign permits. 

2. I have spoken with Mr. Tangeman about the form that a cease and desist
letter from Koppleman and Paige might take ... specifically, that ALL advertising
signs and flags must be removed from this site within 48 hours of receipt.. that
all the wood in the rack must be put back into the storage pile behind and the
wood rack removed from the site within one week thereafter ... and that all the
'commodities' such as gravel/ shells/ loam/ firewood/ etc must be removed in the
two months thereafter from the site on or before July 1st 2023. He can sell it off or
use it on various job-sites or sell it to other contractors but he is specifically
directed that he is not allowed under any circumstance to replenish any of those
commodity piles.

3. This Cease and Desist Order should note that violations of the Zoning by­
law are punishable by fines of $300 per-day per-violation so that refusing to
remove the two signs (for instance) would accrue fines of $4,200 per week and
that further fines for not removing the wood rack would be the same so that in
two weeks the fines would increase to $6,300 and that by July rt, 2023 that
amount will have swelled again to $50,400 ±. This Cease and Desist Order
should also include a caveat that should the offending tenant prove obdurate the
Town intends to prosecute this case in court to the full extent of the law and the
tenant would be ill advised to think this matter will simply go away.

4. As a final note I am wary that this matter may become uglier than even I
anticipate. Accordingly, I would like to suggest that a corresponding Cease and
Desist Order be served on the Aiken Family Realty Trust who, as landlords, have
leased the site in question to Robert Martin II. I would suggest that if they are held
equally responsible for the violations noted above on their land and (as confirmed in
the National Park evaluation of April 12, 2023 opposing the Planning Board's
"Commercial Site-Review" of the same date), the Aiken children (Andrew of
Connecticut and Allison of Truro) might well chose to terminate the lease and
sue Martin for putting them in expensive legal jeopardy! Sowing dissension in
their camp at this point will sap their resolve and unanticipated legal costs may
well work to drive their purposes and self- interests apart.

All the best; 

Stephen Williams 



May 3, 2023 

Mr. Robert Martin 
P.O. Box 891 
North Truro, Ma. 02652 

RE; 100 Route 6 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Building Department 

24 Town Hall Road 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro MA 02666 

Tel: 508-349-7004, Ext. 131 Fax: 508-349-5508 

By: REGULAR MAIL and by CERTIFIED MAIL# 7022 2410 0000 0167 9098 

Mr. Martin, 

Regrettably, 
I am issuing a CEASE-and-DESIST order for the business that you are currently 
operating at 100 Route 6 Truro, MA., commonly referred to as "Jack's Garage". 

This operation is in violation of the Town of Truro Zoning Bylaws paragraph 30.3 
Seashore District item 12 which states, "Lawfully pre-existing non-conforming 
commercial uses and structures may continue, but in no case shall the use be altered or 
converted to another commercial use". The current use is an alteration and intensification 
of the prior use and therefore NOT ALLOWED. 

This CEASE-and-DESIST order is effective immediately. 

You have the right appeal this decision and if this office can assist you in that endeavor 
please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Regards, 

Richard Stevens 
Building Commissioner 



TD�Dal • 

/'� �r (:)�-�� 
Cp 0 JlJ.,l,t c] '

cJ-cl a

�� 

� � � - __... _,c ./ •• 

• w
-e_,; 

-J�:£�)�
-� � � � C 2C&'}(�� 

/1J7_ � •' ' I 

) � Ld �- �� � 

au-d� �c���- j 
� � <¥ -� �L_J
l)__;._Q_) -�� � Cvlzj JU-m . �� � 

c�a//1-t}� /,?JZ_,fd;;J, 



• (c;�J
., 

� . ------· �- � o-azQ � 

��� 76 

� � & .oJ � �-� ,§ � 

_J2 � �/ . . lo�) 00 4 0

__,f/), tJ<-e ()� �� -7t' � 

�,__,.· - cJ ' � � mA-
� 62-, � C � � 

' �jv� 
. �L��'0a-&-. 
31-3_· � � �� 

� _ _L.--'----<-�___.>-� ��-



October 20, 2023 

 

Truro Zoning Board of Appeals 

Truro, MA 

 

RE: 2023-009/ZBA 

 

Dear Board, 

 

Please forgive the tardiness of this letter as I had emergency surgery and was hospitalized for 10 days.  

 

As an abutter, I am contacting the Board to give my full support to Kimberly Peters, 4 Harrier Way (Atlas 

Map 50, Parcel 263) who seeks a special permit for an ADU. I have known Kimberly Peters and her family 

for decades. She is an environmentally conscious individual with a deep commitment to the land and 

Truro.  I cannot imagine a better use of this land. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Andrea J. Gainey 

2 Harrier Way 

Truro, MA 

 

 

 

 



Town of Truro Zoning Board of Appeals 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA 02666 

APPLICATION FOR HEARING 

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Truro, MA Date _8_/ q/ JQ2/? 
The undersigned hereby files with specific grounds for this application: I I 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

□ NOTICE OF APPEAL

D Applicant is aggrieved by his/her inability to obtain a permit or enforcement action from the Building 
Commissioner on rdate) -------

□ Applicant is aggrieved by order or decision of the Building Commissioner on (date) ______ _
which he/she believes to be a violation of the Truro Zoning Bylaw or the Massachusetts Zoning Act.

D PETITION FOR VARIANCE - Applicant requests a variance from the tenns Section ___ of the
Truro Zoning Bylaw concerning (describe) _____________________ _

� APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT

;!<'.J Applicant seeks approval and authorization of uses under Section 5-0. 2.... of the Truro Zoning Bylaw 
concerning (describe) APO CjC)() Bf ,A-DU -to !84 OC/5 SE LOt" WI 
ex, s t,'-lG � 3�-, 3 s E Haaf:; . 

D Applicant seeks approval for a continuation, change, or extension of a nonconforming structure or use 
under Section ___ of the Truro Zoning Bylaw and M.G.L. Ch. 40A, §6 concerning (describe) __

Property Address 4 /--t�faS WA-'-( T� ,MA Map(s) and Parcel(s) SO· 2�?

Registry of Deeds title reference: Book ':70 '1 . Page '3>J , or Certificate of Title 
Number ________ and Land Ct. Lot# _ ___ ____ and Plan# ______ __ 

Applicant's Name �i.H �£3:rZ-V( PE-1"er?S
Applicant's Legal Mailing Address _J.?O � 3�3 TfZ-V/2-0 AArl OU0k 
Applicant's Phone(s), Fax and Email f<t... ( P f;t c;. OY-S.1"£3[2., c.t)/vl.. 
Applicant is one of the following: (please check appropriate boxJ 

� Owner D Prospective Buyer* D Other* 

*Written Pennission of the own.:r is
required for submittal ot'this application. 

Owner's Name and Address /L[M �f;@)( l?eil?TZ.S , 4: H-4t2:?lf?<. T/2i.!l?O ;U,-4 · 
Representative's Name and Address A-U.Sot..i Af.&$SI .A:3/trl.Lrf"ts. 83I Nl,4-t,-J. Df?NN/S Nlfr a2..<-:

Representative's Phone(s), Fax and Email (5:=ci�) �q4. '1887 Cy} So� ea. 3 �rcl-1 ,kc.fso1c_OJJ7n 

2. The completed application shall also be submitted electronically to the Planning Department Administrator at
�iUtr0" 1 rrur,.1-1na.:.!l\\ in its entirety (including all plans and attachments).

• The applicant is advised to consult with the Building Commissioner. Planning Department, Conservation
Department, Health Department, and/or Historic Commission, as applicable, prior to submitting this
application.

Signature(s) 

otJ GI .:;;$ l'rfi1ttH &P 
Owner(s) Pri11tedNamc(s) or written permission 

Owncr(s l Signature or writkn pcnnission 

Your signature on this application authorizes the Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals and town staff to visit and enter upon th.: subject property 



 

 

INTERNAL 

Town of Truro 

24 Town Hall Way 

Truro MA 02652 

 

 

RE 4 Harrier Way, Truro MA - Special Permit 

 

 

To Whom it May Concern, 

 

I, Kimberly Peters, owner of 4 Harrier Way give permission to Alison Alessi of A3 Architects Inc. to 

sign/act on my behalf with respect to the Zoning Board application. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Kimberly Peters 











































L-1

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

AT
ES

:
Ti

tle
:  

 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

Sc
al

e:
   

As
 N

ot
ed

D
at

e:
   

0
7.

12
.2

3 
N

O
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

37
9 

Sh
or

e 
Ro

ad
 U

ni
t 

1
37

9 
Sh

or
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
ur

o 
, M

A

Le
if 

H
am

nq
ui

st
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s
in

fo
@

lh
a.

de
si

gn
   

   
   

61
7.

36
5.

0
13

0
w

w
w

.lh
a.

de
si

gn

1 SITE PLAN EXISTING



L-2

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

AT
ES

:
Ti

tle
:  

 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

 P
RO

PO
SE

D
 (Z

BA
)

Sc
al

e:
   

As
 N

ot
ed

D
at

e:
   

0
7.

12
.2

3 
N

O
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

37
9 

Sh
or

e 
Ro

ad
 U

ni
t 

1
37

9 
Sh

or
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
ur

o 
, M

A

Le
if 

H
am

nq
ui

st
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s
in

fo
@

lh
a.

de
si

gn
   

   
   

61
7.

36
5.

0
13

0
w

w
w

.lh
a.

de
si

gn

1 PROPOSED SITE PLAN ZBA

ASSESSORS MAP 10
PARCEL 9

#383 SHORE ROAD
(WILLIAM & BLANCHE SHANLEY)

ASSESSORS MAP 10
PARCEL 8

#375A SHORE ROAD
(HIGHLAND MOORS 20 REALTY TRUST)

ASSESSORS MAP 10
PARCEL 11

#377 SHORE ROAD
(390 SHORE ROAD REALTY TRUST)

LOT AREA
AREA = 6,392 S.F.±

0.15 ACRES±
(LOTS 57 & 58 ON PLAN

BOOK 33, PAGE 127)

SHORE ROAD
A.K.A. ROUTE 6A

50' WIDE - PUBLIC WAY

HIGH HEAD ROAD

UNDEFINED -

UNCONSTRUCTED PUBLIC WAY

FLOOD ZONE AE (EL.13)

FLOOD ZONE AO (DEPTH 1')

TV

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

4

5

5

6

78

11

12

14

13

12
12

11

10
9

8
7

6

5

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

12

13.3

11.7

11.7

14.7

7.5

7.2

3.0

4.5

7.3

7.5

11.6

12.2

12.3

APPROXIMATE
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
SYSTEM LOCATION

EX
IST

IN
G 

WOO
D

FR
AM

E D
WEL

LIN
G

TO
P O

F F
OU

ND
AT

IO
N

EL
EV

. =
 14

.5

EX
IST

IN
G 

WOO
D

FR
AM

E D
WEL

LIN
G

TO
P O

F F
OU

ND
AT

IO
N

EL
EV

. =
 14

.4

DE
CK

RO
OF

 O
VE

RH
AN

G

TIMBER RET. WALL

 BRICK PATIO

SP
LIT

 R
AI

L F
EN

CE

U.P.

U.P.

TIMBER FENCE

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY & PARKING

DE
CK

RO
OF

 O
VE

RH
AN

G

N2
9°

 42
' 3

2"E

S2
9°

 42
' 3

2"WN60° 17' 28"W

R =11 ,417 .94'

L=90 .14'68
.47

'
90.00'

73
.51

'

1.8'±

10
.2'

±

11.7'±

10
.7'

±

24
.7'

±

1.9
'±

BENCHMARK:
TOP OF CONC. BOUND

EL.=11.74 (NAVD 88)

SL
AB

EL
=7

.1±

TH
RE

SH
OL

D
EL

=1
5.4

±

OHW OHW OHW

OH
W

OH
W

OH
W

OH
W

OH
W

OH
W

OH
W

OH
W

12.3

8.2

7.3

12.1

11.9

11.8

11.9

SL
AB

EL
=7

.1±

7.9

OSW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

P.A.

PROPOSED
DRIVEADDITION

PR
OP

OS
ED

PA
TI

O
EL

=7
.1

±

PR
OP

OS
ED

SH
EL

L 
PA

TH

P.A.

P.A.

(T
O 

RE
M

AI
N)

(T
O 

BE
 R

EC
ON

ST
RU

CT
ED

 W
IT

H 
1.

5 
ST

OR
Y

DW
EL

LI
NG

 O
N 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 F
OU

ND
AT

IO
N)

EXISTING CESSPOOL
(LOCATION UNKNOWN)

P.A.

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

10"Ø WATER MAIN

EDGE OF GRAVEL

EXISTING CESSPOOL
TO BE PUMPED, FILLED
AND ABANDONED

PROPOSED
WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED
WATER
SERVICE

EXISTING
1,000 GALLON
SEPTIC TANK

EXISTING
LEACH PIT

PROPOSED
LIMIT OF WORK/
SEDIMENTATION BARRIER

PROPOSED
DRY WELL
3' DIA. x 3' D (TYP.)

TIMBER RETAINING
WALL TO BE
RECONSTRUCTED

"UNIT 2 - RED BLDG" PREVIOUSLY
APPROVED MITIGATION AREA
(RE-PLANTED WITH
VIRGINIA/CAROLINA ROSE)

PROPOSED
PLANTER BOX

11

12

12

10

9

8

10"Ø WATER MAIN

"UNIT 2"
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED

LIMIT OF SITE IMPROVEMENTS
(NOT YET CONSTRUCTED)

PROPOSED
LIMIT OF WORK/

SEDIMENTATION BARRIER
(TYP.)

PROPOSED  DRY WELL
3' DIA. x 3' D  (TYP.)

(T
O 

BE
 R

EC
ON

ST
RU

CT
ED

W
IT

H 
2 

ST
Y.

 D
W

EL
LI

NG
 O

N

EX
IS

TI
NG

 F
OU

ND
AT

IO
N)

PR
OP

. R
ID

GE
 E

L.
= 

42
.3

±

PROPOSED 1ST & 2ND FLR. DECK
(EXISTING 1ST FLR. DECK

TO REMOVED AND REPLACED
(PROPOSED DECK NOT TO

EXCEED EXISTING SETBACK)

30
.2'

±

EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE
TO BE RE-SURFACED

WITH POROUS BLOCK

"U
NI

T 1
 - G

RE
EN

 BL
DG

"

EX
IST

IN
G 

1.5
 ST

Y. 
WOO

D 
FR

AM
ED

 D
WEL

LIN
G

OUTLINE OF
PROPOSED "TEMPORARY"

LEACHING PIT

(TO BE UTILIZED)

(TO BE UTILIZED)

"U
NI

T 2
 - R

ED
 BL

DG
"

EX
IST

IN
G 

WOO
D 

FR
AM

ED
 D

WEL
LIN

G

PROPOSED "UNIT 1 - GREEN BLDG"
PROPOSED MITIGATION AREA
(AREA TO BE RE-PLANTED WITH
VIRGINIA/CAROLINA ROSE)

PROPOSED
PATIO

12

BENCHMARK:
TOP OF CONC. BOUND

ELEV. = 11.74 (NAVD 1988)

EXISTING WATER SERVICE
(TO BE RELOCATED)

2'±

ZONING DISTRICT:   BEACH POINT - LIMITED BUSINESS; RESIDENTIAL-USE ALLOWED

LOT FRONTAGE 

FRONT YARD SETBACK 

SIDE YARD SETBACK (EAST)

SUBJECT

LOT AREA

REQUIRED EXISTING

SIDE YARD SETBACK (WEST)

PROPOSED

25 FT

50 FT

5 FT/STORY

5,000 S.F.

5 FT/STORY

6,392± S.F.

90 FT

10.2± FT. (UNIT 1)*

NO CHANGE

(NO CHANGE)

11.7±  FT (UNIT 2)

1.8± FT. (UNIT 1)*

(NO CHANGE)

(NO CHANGE)

(NO CHANGE)

MEAN GRADE AROUND PROPOSED "UNIT 1 - GREEN BLDG"
= (7.5 + 7.2 + 10.3 + 10.8 + 12.1 + 12.1 + 12.2 + 11.9 + 10.6 = 94.7 / 9 = 10.5
PROPOSED RIDGE EL. = 40.35
PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT = 40.35 - 10.5 = 29.85 FT.

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

   OF         SHEETS

PR
O

JE
C

T

SCALE

DATE

DRAWING FILE

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E

D
AT

E

SEAL

N
O

.
R

EV
IS

IO
N

BY

KEY MAP
NO SCALE

ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE
BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN
VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 1988)

DATUM:

F:
\S

D
SK

PR
O

J\
C

17
00

0\
C

17
01

2\
C

17
01

2-
C

IV
.d

w
g 

 7
/1

2/
20

23
 1

1:
21

 A
M

ASSESSORS MAP 10,   PARCEL 10

PLAN BOOK 33,   PAGE 127

L.C.PLAN #41224A

DEED BOOK 2351, PAGE 316

WM. ROGERS S.D.S PLAN DATED AUG. 1981

REFERENCE:

M
AS

S.
 C

O
O

R
D

. S
YS

TE
M

 N
AD

 1
98

3 
M

AI
N

LA
N

D
 Z

O
N

E

C
H

U
C

K 
SI

LV
A

37
9 

SH
O

R
E 

R
O

AD
TR

U
R

O
, M

A

C17012.00

PL
AN

 S
H

O
W

IN
G

 P
R

O
PO

SE
D

"U
N

IT
 1

 - 
G

R
EE

N
 B

LD
G

" S
IT

E 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

C2.2.5
1 1

1" = 10'

07-12-2023

C17012-CIV.dwg

MJB

BPM

TRURO, MA

CONTOUR

UTILITY POLE

FENCE

BOUND

CABLE TV BOX

PILGRIM LAKE

ROUTE 6SHORE ROADCAPE COD BAY

STOTTS CROSSING

H
IG

H
 H

EA
D

 R
D

CL
IF

F 
RD

LOCUS

LEGEND

FLOOD ZONE:
FLOOD ZONE AE (EL 13) SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING IS
A DIRECT REPRESENTATION OF THE GRAPHIC FLOOD
ZONE BOUNDARIES SHOWN ON FEMA FIRM PANEL
#25001C0136J EFFECTIVE JULY 16, 2014.
PLEASE NOTE THAT SITE SPECIFIC FLOODPLAIN
BOUNDARIES MAY VARY DUE TO DIFFERENT
INTERPRETATIONS OF THESE BOUNDARIES.   USERS
ARE ADVISED TO  VERIFY LOCATION OF THESE
BOUNDARIES WITH THE DESIGNATED COMMUNITY
FLOODPLAIN MANAGERS AND/OR FEMA PRIOR TO
SITING ANY PROPOSED STRUCTURES.

EXISTING

PROPOSED

DRY WELL (TYP.)

CONSTRUCTION NOTES:
1. PROPOSED SITE MODIFICATIONS AND/OR

RECONSTRUCTION MAY REQUIRE FULL DESIGN
COMPLIANCE WITH MASS STATE BUILDING CODE FLOOD
ZONE CONSTRUCTION REGULATIONS FOR NEW
CONSTRUCTION.

2. PROPOSED DRIVE, PATH, AND PATIO LAYOUT PER CLIENT.

SEE PLAN TITLED "C1.2.1 PLAN SHOWING EXISTING
SITE CONDITIONS" FOR 379 SHORE ROAD IN TRURO,
MA, PREPARED BY COASTAL ENGINEERING
COMPANY INC. AND DATED DECEMBER 17, 2019.

EXISTING CONDITIONS:

SEE PLAN TITLED "C2.1.1 PLAN SHOWING PROPOSED
SITE IMPROVEMENTS" FOR 379 SHORE ROAD IN
TRURO, MA, PREPARED BY COASTAL ENGINEERING
COMPANY INC. AND DATED FEBRUARY 21, 2020 &
PLAN TITLED "C2.1.2 PLAN SHOWING PROPOSED SITE
IMPROVEMENTS" FOR 379 SHORE ROAD IN TRURO,
MA, PREPARED BY COASTAL ENGINEERING
COMPANY INC. AND DATED MARCH 13, 2020.

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED:

FOR MORE INFORMATION REGARDING PROPOSED
"UNIT 1" RENOVATIONS SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLAN
SET PREPARED BY LEIF HAMNQUIST ARCHITECTS.

ARCHITECT NOTE:

BUILDING HEIGHT CALCULATION:

12

x12.3 SPOT GRADE

CONTOUR12

BACK YARD SETBACK 5 FT/STORY 10.7± FT (UNIT 2) (NO CHANGE)

ZONING COMPLIANCE TABLE

PLAN

1 inch = 10 ft.

10 5 0 10 30

ISSUED FOR ZONING REVIEW 07-12-2023
*FRONT YARD SETBACK TO DECK = 1.9'±,  SIDE YARD SETBACK (WEST) TO DECK = 1.8'± 

UN
IT

 1
 - 

GR
EE

N 
BL

DG

DECK

x 7
.5

x 7
.2

x 1
0.

3
x 1

0.
8

x 1
2.

1

12
.2

 x

x 1
1.

9
x 1

0.
6

x 1
2.

1

07/13/2023



A-1

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

AT
ES

:
Ti

tle
:  

 
FL

O
O

R 
PL

A
NS

Sc
al

e:
   

As
 N

ot
ed

D
at

e:
   

0
7.

12
.2

3 
N

O
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

37
9 

Sh
or

e 
Ro

ad
 U

ni
t 

1
37

9 
Sh

or
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
ur

o 
, M

A

Le
if 

H
am

nq
ui

st
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s
in

fo
@

lh
a.

de
si

gn
   

   
   

61
7.

36
5.

0
13

0
w

w
w

.lh
a.

de
si

gn

20'-0 1/2"±
11'-0"

EXISTING OPENING IN FOUNDATION

7'
-1

1 
3/

4"
28

'-
1"

±

4 1/4" 9'-8" 9'-8" 7'-7"

3'
-3

 5
/1

6"
8'

-2
 5

/8
"

8'
-2

 5
/8

"

24
'-

8 
3/

4"

1'-
4 

1/
4"

2'
-0

"

4'-6 1/4" 3'-6" 4'-0" 3'-6" 4'-6 1/4"

1
A-3

3
A-3

2 A
-3500.45 sq ft

ENCLOSED AREA BELOW B.F.E
REQUIRED VENT AREA = 500.45 SQ/INCH

SMARTVENT FLOOD VENT,
TO BE INSTALLED

1' MAX ABOVE EXISTING SLAB 14.4' NAVD88
T.O. EXISTING FOUNDATION

 INFILL EXISTING OPENING W/ CMU

INFILL EXISTING WINDOWS W/ CMU

LINE OF DECK ABOVE
1' PIER W/ BIGFOOT, TYP. 13.0' NAVD88

T.O. CONC. PIER

 INFILL EXISTING OPENING W/ CMU

 INFILL EXISTING OPENING W/
METAL WIRE PANEL

NEW DOOR W/ BREAK AWAY
PANEL ON EITHER SIDE

3'X3' HOLE CUT IN EXISTING
CONCRETE SLAB, LOCATION TBD

REMOVE ALL EXISTING INTERIOR PARTIONS,
FINISHES, FLOORING

INSULATED BULKHEAD FOR WATER
CONNECTION, PROVIDE ACCESS HATCH.

LOCATION TBD

INFILL EXISTING OPENING W/
METAL WIRE PANEL

WATER LINE FROM STREET,
CONTRACTOR TO CONFIRM LOCATION

SANITARY PIPE TO CONNECT TO SEPTIC SYSTEM,
DESIGN BY OTHERS

 CONC. PAD @ BASE OF STAIR

 PROPOSED PATIO,
BY OTHERS

STORAGE

EXISTING
CONC.
SLAB

W
W

1
A-4

1
A-4

2
A-6

2
A-64A

-3

R

R
G

1
A-3

3
A-3

2 A
-3

15'-9" 3 1/2" 3'-1"

10
'-

8"
27

'-
2"

12'-5 3/4"

4'-0"

3'-5"

4'-8 3/4" 8'-0"
R.O.

7'-3 3/4"

20'-0 1/2"±
MEASURED OFF EXISTING FOUNDATION V.I.F.

8'
-3

 3
/8

"±
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D
 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

CK
 V

.I.
F.

28
'-

1"
±

M
EA

SU
RE

D
 O

FF
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 F
O

U
N

D
AT

IO
N

 -
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

TO
 V

.I.
F

1'-
4"

2'
-8

 1
/8

"
R.

O
.

8'
-1

0
 3

/8
"

2'
-8

 1
/8

"
R.

O
.

12
'-

6 
3/

8"

1'-4 5/8" 6'-0"
R.O.

3'-0 1/8" 6'-0"
R.O.

3'-7 3/4"

20'-0 1/2"

27'-7 1/2"

3'-7"

3'
-8

"
3 

1/
2"1'-
0

 1
/2

"
4'

-6
 1

/2
"

10
'-

3"
3 

1/
2"

7'
-1

"

3 1/2" 2'-11 3/4"
3 1/2"

3'-1"

5'
-9

"
3'

-0
 3

/4
"

R.
O

.
13

'-
7 

1/
8"

2'
-8

 1
/8

"
R.

O
.

3'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

4'
-2

"

EQ
EQ

EQ. EQ. EQ. EQ. 7'-7"

2'-8 1/2"

2'
-0

"

2'-0"

2'
-6

"

1'-
8 

1/
2"

1
A-4

1
A-4

2
A-6

2
A-6

WATER HEATER
UNDER STAIR

LINE OF EXISTING DECK

LINE OF 20' SETBACK
FROM NEAREST POINT
ON UNIT 2

OPEN SHELVING

101

104

105

106

102103

WALL MOUNTED
COMPRESSOR UNITS 107

MOUNT HANDRAIL TO WALL,
INSTALL PER CODE

MOUNT HANDRAIL TO GUARD RAIL,
INSTALL PER CODE

KITCHEN

DINING

LIVING

DECK #1

HALF
BATH

CL

UP

DN

ST
EP

STEP

PANTRY

DW

4A
-3

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION

NEW FOUNDATION

WALL LEGEND

EXISTING FOUNDATION

DEMO

NEW CONSTRUCTION

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"1 LOWER LEVEL
SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"2 FIRST FLOOR



A-2

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

AT
ES

:
Ti

tle
:  

 
FL

O
O

R 
PL

A
NS

Sc
al

e:
   

As
 N

ot
ed

D
at

e:
   

0
7.

12
.2

3 
N

O
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

37
9 

Sh
or

e 
Ro

ad
 U

ni
t 

1
37

9 
Sh

or
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
ur

o 
, M

A

Le
if 

H
am

nq
ui

st
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s
in

fo
@

lh
a.

de
si

gn
   

   
   

61
7.

36
5.

0
13

0
w

w
w

.lh
a.

de
si

gn

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION

NEW FOUNDATION

WALL LEGEND

EXISTING FOUNDATION

DEMO

NEW CONSTRUCTION

W
D

1
A-3

3
A-3

2 A
-3

1
A-4

1
A-4

2
A-6

2
A-6

10
'-

5"
3 

1/
2"

6'
-1

"
3 

1/
2"

10
'-

1"

9'-10" 3 1/2" 2'-1" 3 1/2" 6'-7 1/2"

20'-0 1/2"

1'-4" 8'-9 1/8"
R.O.

6'-5" 2'-8 1/8"
R.O.

10 1/4"

3 
1/

2"
5'

-1
"

3 
1/

2" 1'-
6 

1/
2"

3'
-2

"

3'
-4

 1
/2

"3
 1

/2
"

5'
-6

 1
/2

"
3 

1/
2"

17
'-

8"

5 1/2" 9'-10" 3 1/2" 2'-1"
3 1/2"

3'-10" 2'-9 1/2" 5 1/2"

3'-2 1/2"
4 1/2"

3'-0"

12
'-

6 
1/

2"
5'

-0
 1

/2
"

1'-
4"

2'
-8

 1
/8

"
R.

O
.

8'
-1

0
 3

/8
"

2'
-8

 1
/8

"
R.

O
.

8'
-6

 1
/4

"
2'

-8
 1

/8
"

R.
O

.
1'-

4"

8'
-2

 1
/2

"
28

'-
1"

20'-0 1/2"

1'-4" 8'-9 5/8"
R.O.

3'-2" 3'-0 3/4"
R.O.

3'-8 1/8"

12
'-

10
"

5'
-4

 1
/2

"
R.

O
.

1'-
6"

5'
-4

 1
/2

"
R.

O
.

3'
-0

"

LINE OF DECK BELOW

201

203

204

205

206

207

208

202

209

BEDROOM #1

BEDROOM #2

BATHROOM #1

DECK #2

CL

CL

DN

STEP

CL

CL

HALL

4A
-3

20'-0 1/2"

HALF WALL
@ GLASS

CABINET

CABINET

VALVE

LINE OF DECKS BELOW

RAIN LEADER
 TO DRY WELL

RAIN LEADER
 TO DRY WELL

RAIN LEADER
 TO DRY WELL

RAIN LEADER
 TO DRY WELL

LINE OF EXT. WALL BELOW

ASPHALT
SHINGLES

ASPHALT
SHINGLES

G
U

TT
E

R

G
U

TT
E

R

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"1 SECOND FLOOR
SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"2 ROOF



A-3

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

AT
ES

:
Ti

tle
:  

 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N
S

Sc
al

e:
   

As
 N

ot
ed

D
at

e:
   

0
7.

12
.2

3 
N

O
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

37
9 

Sh
or

e 
Ro

ad
 U

ni
t 

1
37

9 
Sh

or
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
ur

o 
, M

A

Le
if 

H
am

nq
ui

st
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s
in

fo
@

lh
a.

de
si

gn
   

   
   

61
7.

36
5.

0
13

0
w

w
w

.lh
a.

de
si

gn

14.40'NAVD88 T.O. EXISTING FOUNDATION

13.00'NAVD88 B.F.E (AE ZONE)

25.74'NAVD88 T.O. SECOND FLOOR SUBFLOOR

15.58'NAVD88 T.O. FIRST FLOOR SUBFLOOR

25.17'NAVD88 T.O. SECOND FLOOR DECK FRAMING

15.08'NAVD88 T.O. FIRST FLOOR DECK FRAMING

A
B

A

A A

WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES, NATURAL

PTD. WD. CORNER BOARDS

PTD. WD. CASING

PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARDS

EXISTING FOUNDATION

SMARTVENT

GUTTERS

ASPHALT SHINGLES

HVAC COMPRESSOR UNITS,
MOUNTED TO COMPOSITE SHEET.

MOUNT ABOVE B.F.E.

2
A-6

WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES, NATURAL

PTD. WD. CORNER BOARDS

PTD. WD. CASING

PTD. WD. RAKE BOARDS

A A

D

E
F

EXISTING FOUNDATION

WIRE MESH PANEL

B-01

12
7

12
7

1
A-4

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

AD

201

102103

WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES, NATURAL

PTD. WD. CORNER BOARDS

PTD. WD. CASING

EXISTING FOUNDATION

PT. 6X6 POST

2X2 WD. BALUSTER AND 2X6 RAILS

1X6 DECKING

1X10 SKIRT BOARD

PT. 6X6 POST

2X2 WD. BALUSTER AND 2X6 RAILS

1X6 DECKING

1X10 SKIRT BOARD

PTD. WD. RAKE BOARDS

12
7

12
7

1
A-4

14.40'NAVD88 T.O. EXISTING FOUNDATION

13.00'NAVD88 B.F.E (AE ZONE)

25.74'NAVD88 T.O. SECOND FLOOR SUBFLOOR

15.58'NAVD88 T.O. FIRST FLOOR SUBFLOOR

25.17'NAVD88 T.O. SECOND FLOOR DECK FRAMING

15.14'NAVD88 T.O. FIRST FLOOR DECK FRAMING

B

101

C C

WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES, NATURAL

PTD. WD. CORNER BOARDS

PTD. WD. CASING

PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARDS

EXISTING FOUNDATION

WIRE MESH PANEL

GUTTERS

ASPHALT SHINGLES

2
A-6

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"4 WEST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"3 SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"2 EAST ELEVATION

 R.302.1(1) COMPLIANCE TABLE(WEST ELEVATION)
 EXISTING OPENINGS WITHIN 3' =
 PROPOSED OPENINGS WITHIN 3' =

 61.75 sq. ft.
 61.58 sq. ft.

-AREA OF OPENINGS MEASURED AND CONFIRMED BY ARCHITECT
-WEST ELEVATION IS WITHIN 3-5' OF SIDELINE SETBACK



A-6

RE
VI

SI
O

N
 D

AT
ES

:
Ti

tle
:  

 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 S
EC

TI
O

N
S

Sc
al

e:
   

As
 N

ot
ed

D
at

e:
   

0
7.

12
.2

3 
N

O
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

37
9 

Sh
or

e 
Ro

ad
 U

ni
t 

1
37

9 
Sh

or
e 

Ro
ad

Tr
ur

o 
, M

A

Le
if 

H
am

nq
ui

st
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s
in

fo
@

lh
a.

de
si

gn
   

   
   

61
7.

36
5.

0
13

0
w

w
w

.lh
a.

de
si

gn

1
A-6

3
A-6

14.40' NAVD88 T.O. EXISTING FOUNDATION

15.58' NAVD88 T.O. FIRST FLOOR SUBFLOOR

13.00' NAVD88 B.F.E (AE ZONE)

7.73'± NAVD88 EXISTING SLAB ELEVATION(NO CHANGE)

25.73' NAVD88 T.O. SECOND FLOOR SUBFLOOR

29
'-1

0 
1/

4"
 ±

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T

40.35' NAVD88 T.O. RIDGE

10
'-1

 3
/4

"
8'

-1
1 

1/
4"

40.35' NAVD88 T.O. RIDGE

24.68' NAVD88 T.O. FIRST FLOOR PLATE

33.84' NAVD88 T.O. SECOND FLOOR PLATE

3'
-0

"

1'
-2

 1
/4

"
9'

-1
 1

/8
"

1'
-0

 5
/8

"
8'

-1
 1

/4
"

10
"

5'
-8

 3
/1

6"

6'
-1

1 
7/

8"

34.67' NAVD88 T.O. ATTIC SUBFLOOR

32.75' NAVD88 B.O. HEADER, TYP.

22.57' NAVD88 B.O. HEADER, TYP.

7'
-0

 1
/4

"

10.50'NAVD88 AVERAGE GRADE

KITCHEN/DINING

LOWER LEVEL

BATHROOM 1

ATTIC

1212

7

HALL

7

9'
-1

 1
/4

"
FR

O
M

 T
.O

. S
U

B
FL

O
O

R
 T

O
 B

.O
. F

R
A

M
IN

G
1'

-0
 5

/8
"

8'
-1

 1
/4

"
FR

O
M

 T
.O

. S
U

B
FL

O
O

R
 T

O
 B

.O
. F

R
A

M
IN

G

1
A-4

11 7/8" TJI @ 16" O.C.

EXT. WALL ASSEMBLY
-WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES
-CEDAR BREATHER
-WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER
-1/2" CDX SHEATHING
-2X6 STUD WALL
-CLOSED-CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION
-VAPOR BARRIER
-1/2" GWB WALL W/ SKIM COAT

11 7/8" TJI @ 12" O.C.

ROOF ASSEMBLY
-ASPHALT SHINGLES
-SELF ADHERED WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER
-3/4" CDX SHEATHING
-2X10 RAFTERS
-CLOSED-CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION
-VAPOR BARRIER

EXT. FLOOR ASSEMBLY
-WD. FLOORING
-3/4" SUBFLOOR
-VAPOR BARRIER
-11 7/8" TJI JOISTS
-CLOSED-CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION
-WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER
-2" RIGID FOAM INSULATION

EXT. WALL ASSEMBLY
-WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES
-CEDAR BREATHER
-WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER
-1/2" CDX SHEATHING
-2X6 STUD WALL
-CLOSED-CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION
-VAPOR BARRIER
-1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT

EXISTING FOUNDATION(NO CHANGE
-SEE STRUCTURAL FOR ANCHOR BOLT DETAILS

PT 2X8 MUDSILL

INT. FLOOR ASSEMBLY
-WD. FLOORING/TILE FLOORING(BATH)
-3/4" SUBFLOOR
-11 7/8" TJI JOISTS
-SOUND ISOLATING BATT INSULATION
-1X3 WD. STRAPPING
-1/2" GWB CEILING W/ SKIM COAT

ATTIC FLOOR ASSEMBLY
-3/4" SUBFLOOR
-2X10 JOISTS
-SOUND ISOLATING BATT INSULATION
-1X3 WD. STRAPPING
-1/2" GWB CEILING W/ SKIM COAT

INT. PARTITION ASSEMBLY
-1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT
-2X4 STUDS @ 16" O.C.
-SOUND ISOLATING BATT INSULATION
-1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT

2x10 JOIST @ 16" O.C.

7 1/4"

1'
-0

 5
/8

"

WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES

CEDAR BREATHER

WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER

3/4" SHEATHING

1X6 PTD. WD. SUBFASCIA W/ SHINGLE TUCK

ALUMINUM GUTTER

RAKE BOARD BEYOND

ALUMINUM HEAD FLASHING

1X4 WD. CASING

WINDOW, SEE SCHEDULE

ALUMINUM DRIPEDGE

3/4" ROOF SHEATHING

SELF ADHERING WRB

ASPHALT SHINGLES

2X10 RAFTER @ 16" O.C.

CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION, R-49 MIN.

3/4" SUBFLOOR

2X10 CEILING JOISTS @ 16" O.C.

1X3 STRAPPING @ 16" O.C.

1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT

(2)2X6 TOP PLATE

INSULATED HEADER, SEE STRUCTURALS

1X4 PTD. WD. INT. CASING

1X PTD. WD. STOOL

(2)2X6 SILL PLATE

CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION, R-25 MIN.

BACKER BOARD AND TILE IN SHOWER

2X6 EXTERIOR WALL

VAPOR BARRIER

(2)2X6 MUD SILL

TILE FLOORING IN SHOWER

3/4" SUBFLOOR

(2)1 3/4"X11 7/8" LSL RIM JOIST

CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION @ RIM, R-25 MIN.

11 7/8" TJI JOIST @ 16" O.C.

1X3 STRAPPING @ 16" O.C.

1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT

WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES

CEDAR BREATHER

WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER

3/4" SHEATHING

(2)2X6 TOP PLATE

INSULATED HEADER, SEE STRUCTURALS

1X4 PTD. WD. INT. CASING

CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION, R-25 MIN.

ALUMINUM HEAD FLASHING

1X4 WD. CASING

1X PTD. WD. STOOL

(2)2X6 SILL PLATE

WHITE CEDAR SHINGLES

CEDAR BREATHER

WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER

3/4" CDX SHEATHING

1X4 PTD. WD BASEBOARD

WD. FLOORING

3/4" SUBFLOOR

(2)1 3/4"X11 7/8" LSL RIM JOIST

CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION, R-49 MIN.

11 7/8" TJI JOIST @ 16" O.C.

2" RIGID ROAM INSULATION @ BOTTOM OF JOISTS

2X8 MUDSILL

EXISTING FOUNDATION

(2)2X6 MUD SILL

1/2" GWB W/ SKIM COAT

CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION, R-25 MIN.

WINDOW, SEE SCHEDULE

HURRICANE TIE @ EACH RAFTER

11 7/8" LVL RIM JOIST

WRAP BITUMINOUS TAPE
@ BOTTOM OF SHEATHING

VAPOR BARRIER

3/4" ROOF SHEATHING

SELF ADHERING WRB

ASPHALT SHINGLES

11 7/8" LVL RIDGE BEAM

2X10 RAFTER @ 16" O.C.

CLOSED CELL SPRAY FOAM INSULATION, R-49 MIN.

LSTA 24 STRAP OVER RIDGE, RAFTER TO RAFTER

SCALE: 3/8"   =    1'-0"2 BUILDING SECTION BB
SCALE: 3/4"   =    1'-0"1 WALL SECTION BB

SCALE: 1"       =    1'-0"3 RIDGE DETAIL





 

January 
S M T W T F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    

       

 

April 

S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30     

       

 

July 

S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    

       

 

October 

S M T W T F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31   

       

 

 

February 
S M T W T F S 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29   

       

 

May 

S M T W T F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

       

 

August 

S M T W T F S 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

       

 

November 
S M T W T F S 

     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

       

 

 

March 

S M T W T F S 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31       

 

June 

S M T W T F S 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30       

 

September 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30      

       

 

December 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31     

       

 

 

 

Note:   Leap Year 

Jan 01 New Year's Day 

Jan 15 M L King Day 

Feb 19 Presidents' Day 

Feb 29 Leap Day 

Mar 29 Good Friday 

Mar 31 Easter Sunday 

Apr 15 Patriots’ Day 

Apr 22 
Passover (starts at 
sundown – do not 
schedule meetings late 
afternoon or evening) 

Apr 30 Annual Town Mtg 

May 14 Annual Town Election 

May 27 Memorial Day 

Jun 19 Juneteenth 

 
Jul 04 Independence Day 

Sep 02 Labor Day 

Oct 2 

Rosh Hashanah 
(starts at sundown – do 
not schedule meetings 
late afternoon or 
evening) 

Oct 3 Rosh Hashanah (all 
day – do not schedule 
meetings) 

Oct 11 
Yom Kippur (starts at 
sundown – do not 
schedule meetings late 
afternoon or evening) 

Oct 12 Yom Kippur 
(Sundown) Oct 14 Indigenous Peoples’ Day 

Nov 11 Veterans’ Day 

Nov 28 Thanksgiving Day 

Nov 29 Thanksgiving (Holiday) 

Dec 07 Hanukkah 

Dec 24 Christmas Eve Day 

Dec 25 Christmas 

Dec 31 New Year's Eve Day 
 

2024 



Truro Zoning Board of Appeals 
2024 Hearing/Meeting Schedule 

HEARING/MEETING 
(Monday at 5:30 pm) 

FILING OF NEW 
APPLICATIONS  

Electronic and Paper 
(Due by Noon) 

SUPPLEMENTAL FILING 
Electronic and Paper 

(Due by Monday Noon 
of the prior week) 

(Unless otherwise noted*) 

January 22 December 22, 2023 January 16* 

February 26 January 26 February 20* 

March 25 February 23 March 18 

April 29 March 29 April 22 

May 20 April 19 May 13 

June 24 May 24 June 17 

July 22 June 21 July 15 

August 19 July 19 August 12 

September 23 August 23 September 16 

October 21 September 20 October 15* 

November 18 October 18 November 12* 

December 16 November 15 December 9 

 

 

MEETING DATES AND TIMES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
Please check the Town Website www.truro-ma.gov for any changes in the schedule 


	ZBA Packet for 10-23-2023.pdf
	Pending.7.24.23.ZBA.MeetingMinutes.pdf
	Pending.8.21.23.ZBA.MeetingMinutes.pdf
	final Staff Memo to ZBA August 21 2023 meeting.pdf
	2022-017 ZBA 538 Shore Road Supplemental pkt for 10-23-2023 mtg.pdf
	Cover Ltr, Amended Aplic, Amended Narr 8-30-2023.pdf
	SturdyLetter080323.pdf
	AmendedSignedApplication.pdf
	AmendedProjectNarrative.pdf

	2022-017 ZBA 538 Shore Road Supplemental for 10-2-mtg.pdf
	538 Shore Road - Project Narrative 12-07-2022.pdf
	538 Shore Road - Cons Comm - Order of Conditions 05-19-2022.pdf
	538 Shore Road Damage Photo's - updated 12-27-2022.pdf
	538 shore road -Site Plan - 4-28-23 parking revision - sheet SP.1.PDF
	538 shore road - Site Plan - 4-28-23 parking revision - sheet SP.2.PDF
	538 Shore Rd. Existing Site Plan (record) 12-2-22.PDF
	538 Shore Rd. Title 5 - Sheet S.1.PDF
	538 Shore Rd. Title 5 - Sheet S.2_.PDF
	538 Shore Road - Proposed Building 1 Plans.pdf
	538 Shore Road - Proposed Building 2 Plans.pdf
	538 Shore Road - Proposed Building 3 Plans.pdf
	538 Shore Road - Bldg. 1 Existing Plan  Elevations.pdf
	538 Shore Road - Bldg. 2 Existing Plan  Elevations.pdf
	538 Shore Road - Bldg. 3 Existing Plan  Elevations.pdf
	538 Shore Road Road Condominium Site Plan 10-31-1986.PDF


	2023-004 ZBA 12 Ocean Bluff Lane supplemental filing.pdf
	Robert Martin 100 Route 6 LLC Appeal of Bldg Commissioner Order.pdf
	9-22-2023 Documents submitted by Stephen Williams re 100 Rte 6.pdf
	2023-009 ZBA 4 Harrier Way Application for 9-25-2023 mtg.pdf
	4 harrier_zba_special permit_application.pdf
	4 harrier_letter_owner.pdf
	50 - 263  4 Harrier Way ZBA Special Permit_certified abutters.pdf
	13132 Existing Conditions.pdf
	13132 Proposed ADU.pdf
	4 Harrier ADU arch plans_stamped.pdf


	Chuck Silva ltr to reopen hearing August 28 2023.pdf
	2023-008 ZBA 379 Shore Road Application for 8-21-2023 mtg.pdf
	Ltr from Blanche W Shanley 9-12-2023.pdf
	2024 Yearly Calendar - eas.pdf
	2024 Zoning Board of Appeals Calendar 3-column 9-15-2023.pdf



